City OF OAKLAND

BUDGET ADVISORY COMMISSION

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Oakland Budget Advisory Commission
(BAC) is scheduled for Wednesday, November 13, 2024, at 6:00 PM.

The Budget Advisory Commission will be held in Hearing Room 2 in City Hall.
Members of the Public have the following options to observe the meeting:

1. Watch the meeting on KTOP using Granicus.
2. Use the Zoom link attached to this agenda to remotely observe the meeting.

Commission Members:

Mandela Bliss, Armand Bryan, Larisa Casillas, Mike Forbes, Guadalupe Garcia, Margaret
Grimsley, Mike Petouhoff, Caitlin Prendiville, Jane Yang, Stephisha Ycoy-Walton

City's Representative(s):
Nathan Bassett - Finance Department

Meeting Agenda:

1. Administrative Matters [5 minutes]
e Welcome & Attendance

2. Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes [1 minute]
e Moved to Next Meeting — Meetings of April 10, 2024; May 23, 2024; June 6, 2024;
July 10, 2024; and September 11, 2024

3. Leadership Elections [15 Minutes]
e Nominations for Chair, Vice Chair, and Liaison to the Finance & Management
Committee
e Voting

4. Commissioners’ protocol [5 minutes]
e Commissioner Application review
e Onboarding & Exit / Recruitment - Open spots

5. Finance Department Update [5 minutes]

6. FY 2024 Q4 R&E Report [30 Minutes]
e Overview of Report
e Contingency Implementation
e Council Discussions - Email Communication

7. Budget Survey Polling Discussion [15 minutes]
e Polling Questions



CITY OF OAKLAND
BUDGET ADVISORY COMMISSION

8. 2024 Work Plan Update and Ad Hoc Study Groups [15 minutes]

Working Group Assignments

Strategic Plan Working Group

Unhoused / Housing ad hoc group

Partnership with the Goldman School at U.C. Berkeley

9. Agenda Items for Future Meetings [15 minutes]

General Plan Update Presentation by Planning Department
Mayor’s Commission on Aging - Presentation Request

Form 700 Filing Information Presentation from City Clerk’s Office
Department of Race & Equity Follow Up Discussion

10. Open Forum [5 minutes]

11. Adjournment

Attachments: FY 2024 Q4 R&E Report; Email Communication from Council Member
Ramachandran; Community Engagement Work Group — Public Poll Ideas



CITY OF OAKLAND
BUDGET ADVISORY COMMISSION

Hi there,

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.
When: November 13, 2024 06:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

Topic: Meeting of the City of Oakland Budget Advisory Commission (BAC)

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81584763954
Or One tap mobile :

+16694449171,,81584763954# US

+16699006833,,81584763954# US (San Jose)
Or Telephone:

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

+1 669 444 9171 US

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 719 359 4580 US

+1 253 205 0468 US

+1253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)

+1 305 224 1968 US

+1 309 205 3325 US

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

+1 360 209 5623 US

+1 386 347 5053 US

+1 507 473 4847 US

+1564 217 2000 US

+1 646 931 3860 US

+1 689 278 1000 US
Webinar ID: 815 8476 3954

International numbers available: https://usO6web.zoom.us/u/kc4erTBb6i



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81584763954
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kc4erTBb6i

AGENDA REPORT

CITY OF OAKLAND

TO: Jestin D. Johnson FROM: Erin Roseman
City Administrator Director of Finance

SUBJECT: FY 2023-24 Fourth Quarter Q4 Revenue
and Expenditures (R&E) Report And FY
2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges DATE: October 10, 2024

City Administrator Approval  ~— ~___ Date: O Ct l l 2 O 24
)

Jestin Johns&n (Oct 11, 2024 05:36 PDT)

RECOMMENDATION

Staff Recommends That The City Council Receive An Informational Report On Fiscal Year
(FY) 2023-24 Fourth Quarter (Q4) Revenue and Expenditure (R&E) Results For The General
Purpose Fund (GPF, 1010), and select funds, Preliminary Analysis of the Condition of the
FY 2024-25 Budget, and Information on the City's Fiscal Condition & Fiscal Challenges

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report details the City of Oakland’s (the City) unaudited Fourth Quarter (Q4) financial results
for FY 2023-24 in the General Purpose Fund (GPF) and other select funds. At year end, revenue
collected reflects 85.1% of the adjusted revenue budget and expenditures reflect 94.3% of the
adjusted expenditure budget.

Table 1 below summarizes the FY 2023-24 GPF revenue and expenditures adjusted budget and
the year-end unaudited actuals which resulted in a $79.84 million or 9.2% year-end operating
shortfall.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 2

Table 1: Summary of FY 2023-24 Q4 GPF Revenues & Expenditures Budget to Year-End
Unaudited Actuals ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24
. y (Over)/Under Net | (Over)/Under Net
Adopted Budget| Adjusted Budget | Year-End Actuals Adjusted Budget | Adjusted Budget
) 202524 834.12 863.64 734.68 (129.00) (14.9)%
evenues
FY 2023-24 834.12 863.68 814.52 49.16 5.7%
Expenditures
Operating
(Shortfall) / — — (79.84 (79.84 (9.2)%4
Surplus

FY 2023-24 GPF revenue ended the year at $734.68 million, which is $129.00 million or 14.9%
under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $863.68 million. Revenue categories in the GPF
sensitive to macroeconomic conditions ended the year below revenue projections. Specifically for
Real Estate Transfer Tax (RETT), the impact of rising interest rates on property demand
contributed to the revenue shortfalls. In addition, the Adjusted Budget assumed a one-time use
of fund balance in the amount of $30.12 million to balance adopted expenditures and $27.97
million to support carryforwards.

FY 2023-24 GPF expenditures ended the year at $814.52 million, which is $49.16 million or 5.7%
under compared to the Adjusted Budget of $863.68 million.

This results in an operating deficit of $79.84 million for the GPF in FY 2023-24.

BACKGROUND / LEGISLATIVE HISTORY

Below is a summary of the Council and administrative actions that have occurred from the
beginning of the fiscal year through Q4 that have modified the FY 2023-24 Budget:

Pursuant to the City’s Consolidated Fiscal Policy - Part G. Criteria for Project Carryforwards and
Encumbrances, the FY 2023-24 Adopted Budget has also been adjusted to include $27.97 million
in prior year carryforwards in the GPF which utilizes available fund balance to cover the cost.

On November 7, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 89981 C.M.S., amending the
current year FY 2023-24 budget to reallocate $2.5 million of newly available funds from reduced
debt payments to the Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority (OACCA) to fund
improvements to 9-1-1 dispatch and the recruitment and retainment of workers.

On March 27, 2024, the City Administrator released a memo outlining several policies to be
implemented immediately that would help reduce City expenditures, primarily in the GPF. There
was and continues to be a hiring freeze for all non-sworn positions for the remainder of FY 2023-

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 3

24. Additionally, a citywide moratorium on professional training and conference requests funded
through the GPF has stayed in effect. All other discretionary spending in the GPF has been limited
as the City attempted to bridge the widening gap between GPF revenues and expenditures.

On June 26, 2024, the City Administrator presented an Informational Report to the City Council
outlining several actions the City could take to reduce the deficit in the GPF. One of the actions
included was the fiscal retrenchment of carryforward funds in the GPF based on the inaction to
utilize the funds and the lack of funding in the GPF fund balance by year-end. Fiscal retrenchment
is defined as the reduction of costs or spending in response to economic difficulty where
jurisdictions take immediate action to begin to stabilize the fiscal situation. This resulted in an
estimated reduction in the Adjusted Budget by about $26.5 million. Additionally, approximately $1
million in CIP Department projects was transferred either into eligible bond funds or the Facilities
Fund.

On August 23, 2024, prior to the closure of FY 2023-24, departments were tasked with moving
eligible labor costs out of the GPF into other eligible funding sources. The goal was to help
alleviate the growing deficit in the GPF. This cost saving measure resulted in about $12.5 million
transferred out of the GPF into other eligible funding sources.

ANALYSIS AND POLICY ALTERNATIVES

This report supports the Citywide priority of a responsive, trustworthy government by providing
timely and up-to-date financial information, it enhances transparency allowing residents,
stakeholders, and decision-makers to be informed of the City’s fiscal health, promoting a culture
of responsible financial stewardship.

General Purpose Fund (GPF)
FY 2023-24 Q4 Revenues

In total, GPF revenue ended FY 2023-24 at $734.68 million, which is 14.94% below the Adjusted
Budget of $863.68 million. FY 2023-24 ended with significant shortfalls in key areas, namely Real
Estate Transfer Tax (RETT), Sales Tax, Fines and Penalties, and Transit Occupancy Tax (TOT).
High interest rates significantly impacted RETT, which accounts for 74.5% of the net revenue
deficit in the GPF. The construction and retail sectors also showed declines, affecting Business
License Tax and Sales Tax. Issues such as under staffing and legal constraints on new revenue
collection methods (like automatic license plate readers that identify vehicles with delinquent
parking taxes) led to shortfalls in Fines and Penalties. Furthermore, the budget anticipated one-
time revenues in the form of a land sale that did not materialize during the fiscal year in addition
to optimistic assumptions about business recovery in certain sectors post-COVID. On the positive
side, property values continued to rise, supporting property tax revenues to end above budget.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 4

The most impactful variances are detailed below.

* Real Estate Transfer Tax (RETT): FY 2023-24 Real Estate Transfer Tax collections
ended the year at $57.61 million which is $52.80 million or 47.8% under the Adjusted
Budget of $110.41 million. This level of collections is below the prior year level of $75.55
million by $17.94 million or 23.7%. The decision by the Federal Open Market Committee
(FOMC) to raise interest rates multiple times to combat inflation has had a ripple effect on
the real estate sector. The increase in the federal funds rate has directly influenced
mortgage rates, making borrowing more expensive. This had a cooling effect on the real
estate market as higher interest rates deterred potential home buyers, which reduced the
overall number of transactions. The correlation between rising interest rates and declining
real estate transactions is well-illustrated here, with a significant drop in both the volume
of sales and the value of properties sold, especially in the higher price brackets. High-
value property sales contribute disproportionately more to RETT revenue due to their
higher tax yield per transaction, since these taxes are calculated as a percentage of the
sale price. For the City as a whole, there was a reduction in property sales year over year
of about 10.1% when compared to FY 2022-23. The amount decreased is amplified when
considering that sales fell by 19.6% when accounting for the sales prices. This resulting
shortfall in RETT collections significantly affects the GPF, as it accounts for 74.5% of the
net GPF revenue shortfall.

* Miscellaneous Revenue: FY 2023-24 collections of miscellaneous revenues ended the
year at $9.14 million which is $12.08 million or 56.9% under the Adjusted Budget of $21.22
million. One-time revenue from land sales was included in the budget as a miscellaneous
revenue source. This one-time land sale has been delayed and thus represents the
second largest contributor to the shortfall in GPF revenues.

+ Business Tax (BT): FY 2023-24 collections of BT ended the year at $123.48 million, which
is $1.77 million or 1.4% under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $125.25 million. The
Construction, Utilities, and Rental sectors showed decreased activity and did not meet tax
contributions as anticipated in the budget. Despite these shortfalls there was a general
increase in gross receipts of 1.3% reported by businesses renewing their tax filings in FY
2023-24 compared to the gross receipts reported in the prior fiscal year by the same
accounts across all BT sectors. This year’s growth rate is slightly below the 2.7% average
annual percentage increase in gross receipts reported for account renewals over the
previous four fiscal years. In total, BT collection increased by $8.10 million or 7.0% in FY
2023-24 from the $115.38 million collected in FY 2022-23. The sectors with the highest
year over year increase in BT remitted were led by Professional / Semi-Professional
Services, Admin Headquarters, and Wholesale Sales. The November 17, 2023, report to
the City Council on Measure T's implementation showed that these three categories
accounted for approximately 47.5% of the overall net revenue increase from the amended
business tax structure resulting from Measure T, totaling about $8.3 million in growth
annually.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 5

« Sales Tax: Receipts ended the year at $62.27 million, which is $5.95 million or 8.8% under
the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $67.69 million. Data available through the third quarter
(Q3) reflects that Oakland’s Sales Tax receipts in FY 2023-24 came in 4.2% below the
level of collection compared to Q3 in FY 2022-23. (Sales Tax is collected by the State and
the corresponding detailed data becomes available to the City in the subsequent quarter.)
The decline reflects broader economic trends influenced by moderating inflation and shifts
in consumer behavior. Inflation, though less aggressive than in previous periods, has left
its imprint on the economy. Its moderation has somewhat stabilized prices, yet the overall
impact has led to a contraction in certain business sectors, led by Fuel and Service
Stations, Autos and Transportation, and the General Consumer Goods industries. Taxes
from jet fuel dropped significantly as airlines sought cheaper locations to fuel aircraft and
cargo outside of the area. New motor vehicle sales absorbed a decline as the cost of
financing increased. Retail declines in General Goods follow a nationwide trend towards
online shopping and a preference for services over goods, which led to decreases in
physical retail, impacting sales tax collections traditionally sustained by in-store
purchases.

« Transient Occupancy Tax ("TOT"): FY 2023-24 collections ended the year at $18.93
million, which is $3.55 million or 15.8% under the adjusted budget of $22.48 million. The
shortfall was mirrored by TOT collections from hotels near the airport area which ended
the year 14.8% below FY2022-23 levels. As of June 30, 2024, the net number of accounts
paying TOT to the City decreased by 2, from 70 in June 2023 to 68. Specifically, accounts
with the land use code for Hotel or Motel fell from 58 to 55. In addition, a nationwide trend
of falling room rates further contributed to lower TOT collections in the City as well.

- Service Charges: Revenues from Service Charges ended the year at $46.98 million,
which is $5.38 million, or 10.3% under the Adjusted Budget of $52.36 million. Reduced
collections in parking meter fees led to the shortfall. Sectors like hospitality and retail,
which often contribute to parking revenue, have not fully rebounded to pre-pandemic
levels. This slower recovery impacts the frequency of parking usage and, consequently,
revenue from parking meters. As a result, collections from parking meters came in at
$10.24 million which is $6.36 million below the $16.60 million estimated in the budget.

« Fines & Penalties: Collections of Fines and Penalties ended the year at $19.19 million,
which is $3.89 million or 16.8% under the Adjusted Budget of $23.07 million. Parking
Citations constitute the majority of Fines and Penalties. The Adjusted Budget assumed
increased revenues from an increase in parking fines of 5% for FY 2023-24, with an
additional 5% planned for FY 2024-25 aimed to keep pace with inflation. However,
Revenue from Parking Citations ended the year at $16.77 million, which is $0.98 million
or 0.5% below the $16.87 million collected in FY 2022-23. There was also an anticipated
$1.20 million revenue increase from the deployment of Automatic License Plate Reader
(ALPR) equipped vehicles for the Scofflaw Detail that was not realized due to legal
restrictions, further exacerbating the revenue shortfall. The Parking Enforcement Unit also
experienced staffing shortages, which directly impacted the ability to enforce parking
regulations effectively.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 6

Revenue categories with surpluses at year-end compared to the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget in
the GPF are led by the Property Tax, the Utility Consumption Tax (UCT), and Parking Tax.

* Property Tax: Collections of Property Tax came in at $299.15 million, which is $4.98
million or 1.7% above the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $294.17 million. In comparison
FY 2022-23 ended the year at $281.28 million. The year over year growth mirrors the
overall growth of assessed taxable value for the City of approximately 6.6 % when
compared to FY 2022-23. The year over year growth reflects an increase in assessed
value due to California Consumer Price Index increase of 2%, as limited by Proposition
13, 2.96 % increased valuation due to changes in ownership, and 0.95% increased
valuation due to new construction.

« Utility Consumption Tax: Collections of Utility Consumption Tax ended the year at
$66.22 million which is $4.32 million or 7.0% above the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of
$61.90 million. The increase is attributed to the approval of a 12.8% rate increase in
consumer utility rates, approved by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)
which took effect in the second half of the fiscal year.

« Parking Tax ("PT"): Collections of Parking Tax ended the year at $11.87 million which is
$0.61 million or 5.4% above the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $11.26 million. Across
the city, PT revenues have now returned to levels seen before the COVID-19 pandemic.
Notably, the Downtown area has experienced significant year-over-year increases in
parking tax collections over the past three fiscal years, with sequential annual rises of
31%, 18%, and 11% of revenue collected respectively. In contrast, there was a 6%
decrease in parking tax collections around the Airport area in FY 2023-24 compared to FY
2022-23, after experiencing two consecutive years of growth in that area.

The Adjusted Budget of $890.07 million as reported in the Q3 R&E was reduced by fiscal
retrenchment, primarily by reducing the amount of appropriations that had been carried forward
from FY 2022-23, due to the inaction to utilize the funds and the lack of funding (the operational
budget deficit) in the GPF fund balance. Fiscal retrenchment is defined as the reduction of costs
or spending in response to economic difficulty where jurisdictions take immediate action to begin
to stabilize the fiscal situation. This in turn reduced the anticipated use of fund balance
proportionally. The updated FY 2023-24 Adjusted Revenue Budget of $863.68 million at year end
still assumed $30.12 million in use of fund balance to support expenditures adopted in the budget
and $27.97 million in use of fund balance to support the remaining prior year carryforwards. Net
of use of fund balance, actual revenues ended the year at $734.68 million, compared to the
$805.59 million estimated in the Adjusted Budget, representing a net shortfall of $70.91 million or
8.8% for actual revenues.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024

Page 7

Table 2 below highlights revenue categories year-end actuals when compared to the FY 2023-

24 Adjusted Budget.

Table 2: FY 2023-24 Q4 GPF Revenues Budget to Actuals ($ in millions)

FY 2023-24Q4| Year-End $ Year-End %
Revenue P Vs YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
c Adopted Adjusted . . .
ategory Budaet Budaet Unaudited Adjusted Adjusted
9 9 Actuals Budget Budget
Property Tax 29417 29417 299.15 4.98 1.7 Y
Business License
Tax 125.25 125.25 123.48 (1.77 (1.4) %
Real Estate
Transfer Tax 110.41 110.41 57.61 (52.80 (47.8) %
Sales Tax 67.69 67.69 61.74 (5.95 (8.8) %
Utility
Consumption Tax 61.90 61.90 66.22 4.32 7.0 %
Service Charges 51.60 52.36 46.98 (5.38 (10.3) %
Fines & Penalties 23.07 23.07 19.19 (3.89 (16.8) %
Transient
Occupancy Tax 22.48 22.48 18.93 (3.55 (15.8) %
Miscellaneous
Revenue 21.22 21.22 9.14 (12.08 (56.9) %
Interfund
Transfers 13.08 13.08 13.08 — — %
Parking Tax 11.26 11.26 11.87 0.61 5.4 %
Licenses &
Permits 1.39 1.39 1.44 0.08 3.4 Y
Interest Income 0.48 0.48 3.55 3.07 633.3 Y%
Grants &
Subsidies — 0.82 1.77 0.95 115.5 %
Subtotal 804.00 805.59 734.68 (70.91 (8.8) %
Transfers from
Fund Balance 30.12 30.12 — (30.12 (100.0)%
Project Offsets &
Carryforwards — 27.97 — (27.97 (100.0)%
Total Revenue 834.12 863.68 734.68 (129.00 (14.9)%

FY 2023-24 Q4 Expenditures

At the end of Q4 for FY 2023-24, expenditures ended the fiscal year at $814.52 million, or $49.16
million under the Adjusted Budget of $863.68 million. All but four departments ended the fiscal
year under or at budget. One department is overspending at a much higher rate than can be offset
by the other departments.

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 8

By and large, the savings being observed by most departments is due to vacancy savings. The
budgeted vacancy factor assumed in the FY 2023-24 Biennial Budget is 8.00% across most City
Departments, recognizing the trend and capturing vacancy savings. The actual vacancy rate as
of Q4 in the GPF is 15.0%, which is almost twice of that assumed in the budget, resulting in further
savings.

The Biennial Adopted Budget assumed a use of fund balance in the amount of $30.12 million to
balance the expenditures as budgeted. This follows a trend in recent years, during which one-
time funding was needed in the balancing of the expenditures. Expenditure monitoring is
heightened as citywide hiring is a large focus, and current inflationary trends and federal monetary
policy are likely to continue throughout the fiscal year and have an impact on spending trends by
year-end.

Table 3 below breaks down the FY 2023-24 Expenditures by Department.

Table 3: FY 2023-24 Q4 GPF Expenditures Budget to Actuals ($ in millions)

FY 2023-24 Q4 Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24
Department . Year-End (Over) / Under (Over) / Under

Adopted Budget | Adjusted Budget| (41" [ Adjusted Budget| Adjusted Budget
Capital
Improvement
Projects 0.55 1.89 0.59 1.30 68.8 %
City
Administrator 9.81 11.31 8.38 2.93 259 %
City Attorney 21.75 23.38 20.56 2.82 12.1 Y
City Auditor 3.31 3.60 2.31 1.29 35.7 %
City Clerk 7.85 7.94 5.42 2.53 31.8 %
City Council 7.12 7.26 6.38 0.89 12.2 Y
Department of
Transportation 20.54 22.53 22.14 0.39 1.7 %
Department of
Violence
Prevention 10.79 13.08 10.43 2.64 20.2 %
Department of
Workplace and
Employment
Standard 4.31 4.92 4.91 0.01 0.2 Y
Economic and
Workforce
Development
Department 11.19 14.01 9.60 4.41 31.5 %
Finance
Department 30.00 33.18 25.78 7.41 22.3 %
Fire Department 199.87 200.37 186.70 13.67] 6.8 %

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 9
FY 2023-24 Q4 Year-End $ Year-End %
Department A d';Yé%ng: et| A d.': Ystze%zg':: ot Year-End (Over) / Under (Over) / Under

P 9 ) 9 Actuals Adjusted Budget | Adjusted Budget

Housing and

Community

Development

Department 0.24 1.01 2.88 (1.87 (185.5)%

Human

Resources

Management

Department 9.50 9.79 8.72 1.07) 11.0 %

Human

Services

Department 44.76 41.92 44.36 (2.44 (5.8) %

Information

Technology

Department 16.97] 18.67] 15.04 3.63 19.4 %

Mayor 4.60 4.66 4.02 0.65 13.9 %

Non

Departmental

and Port 55.60 60.69 34.82 25.73 42.5 %

Oakland Animal

Services 6.49 6.54 5.84 0.70 10.7 %

Oakland Parks

and Recreation

Department 18.30 19.06 14.91 4.16 21.8 %

Oakland Public

Library

Department 12.31 12.32 10.54 1.77 14.4 %

Oakland Public

Works

Department 1.36 1.84 2.50 (0.66 (35.7)%

Police

Commission 7.96 8.14 6.16 1.97 24.3 %

Police

Department 325.39 332.05 358.57] (26.38 (7.9) %

Public Ethics

Commission 2.25 2.07 1.75 0.32 15.5 %

Race and

Equity

Department 1.29 1.44 1.22 0.22 15.2 %

Total 834.12 863.68 814.52 49.1q 5.7 %

The City's number of vacancies is a contributing factor to projected expenditure savings in the
GPF. At Q4, the GPF's vacancy rate (net positions that are frozen as part of the FY 2023-24
Adopted Budget), is 15.00% as shown in Table 4 below. The vacancy rate assumed in the FY
2023-24 Adopted Budget is 8.00% across most City Departments.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 10

Table 4: FY 2023-24 Q4 GPF Filled and Vacant Positions (Percent %)

Status as of Q4 FY 2023-2024 Percent (%)
Filled or Encumbered 85.0 %
Vacant 15.0 %

FY 2023-24 Fund Balance

The City's GPF Fund net obligations, is projected to end FY 2023-24 with a negative fund
balance.Table 5 below shows mandated reserves required by City Ordinances and the City
Charter, as well as other commitments that adjust or draw down on the GPF balance totaling
$30.40 million, decreasing the estimated FY 2023-24 year-end available fund balance to
negative $16.60 million. In addition, there are $55.06 million in additional possible carry
forwards that could further reduce the FY 2023-24 available fund balance to negative $71.66
million. The estimated FY 2023-24 available Fund Balance is the amount of unobligated
funding available to the City in the GPF.

Table 5: Summary of FY 2023-24 Fiscal Situation with GPF Fund Balance ($ in millions)

GENERAL PURPOSE FUND (1010) FY 2023-24 Q4 FYE

Estimated FY 2023-24 Beginning Audited Fund Balance | 93.28

FY2023-24 Performance

Revenue 734.68
Expenditures 814.52
FY 2023-24 Operating Surplus / Deficit (79.84

Obligations Against Ending Fund Balance

Encumbrances (12.9
Settlement Set Aside (4.4
Required Carry Forward on to FY 2024-25' (12.74
FY 2023-24 Maximum Available Ending Fund Balance (16.60
Additional Possible Carry Forward on to FY 2024-25 (55.06
FY 2023-24 Minimum Available Ending Fund Balance (71.66)

Composition of the GPF Fund Balance

! Required Carryforward include funds that are tied to legally binding contracts or agreements, required to meet
legal settlement terms which may be restricted for specific uses, committed to payments that have processed,
matching funds necessary for federal grant programs, and planned used of carryforward funds adopted in the budget.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 11

The GPF fund balance represents the difference between total assets in the GPF and its
liabilities. However not all GPF these assets are of the same type nor are they all immediately
liquid. The GPF fund balance at the end of FY2023-24 shows a significant negative cash
balance of $62 million offset in part by other assets.

A substantial portion of the GPF’s assets are tied up in non-cash items, such as receivables and
land held for resale. These assets, while valuable, do not provide immediate cash flow to
address the City’s operational needs. As such, the GPF borrows against the pooled cash
available from other funds in order to make payments. This arrangement is true for other Clty
funds, most notably grant funds which are reimbursed after expenditures occur, but it has not
historically been true for the GPF and reflects our precarious fiscal condition.

Preliminary Analysis of the Condition of the FY 2024-25 Budget, and Information on the
City's Fiscal Condition & Fiscal Challenges

The FY 2024-25 budget is in a precarious position, with projected overspending in the GPF
based on latest financial data. Preliminary projections indicate that the GPF is anticipated
to exceed the expenditure budget by an estimated $30 million, primarily driven by
spending in public safety departments.

Compounding the situation are required changes to the current year budget based on the
contingency budget, which was adopted to be activated if payment from a land sale did
not arrive according to the schedule outlined in the budget resolution. The conditions for
the contingency budget have been met, and implementation is in progress. Steps are being
taken to minimize impacts to public safety of implementation.

Considering these factors — implementation of the contingency budget, initial projected
overspending, and the accumulated deficit from FY 2023-24 - the City’s fiscal health is at
significant risk. Expenditure reductions and reallocation of resources are necessary to
mitigate the deficit and ensure fiscal stability throughout the remainder of FY 2024-25.
Once revenue and expenditure information is available from the First Quarter of FY 2024-
25 staff recommends that the Mayor and City Council address the totality of the City’s fiscal
challenges though a formal budget amendment process.

Looking ahead, the City’s Fiscal challenges extend beyond the current year. Preliminary
analysis of the FY 2025-27 baseline budget projects a substantial structural deficit of $120
million. This reflects deeper, ongoing imbalances between revenues and expenditures. To
restore long-term fiscal sustainability, the City will need to adopt comprehensive, ongoing
balancing measures, mostly focusing on the strategic reorganization and prioritization of
services to align spending with available resources.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 12

Conclusion

The City faces fiscal challenges related to last year FY 2023-24, the current year FY 2024-25,
and the coming Biennium FY 2025-27. To shore up its finances the City will need to adopt and
implement significant reductions to expenditures and strategically prioritize the services it
provides subject to available resources. The $188 million in one-time federal aid from the
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) provided temporary financial relief to the General Purpose
Fund (GPF) for the last three fiscal years, addressing what was a persistent structural budget
deficit. However, as these funds are now depleted, the underlying financial issues have
resurfaced, worsened by a significant decline in Real Estate Transfer Tax (RETT) revenues, which
were $52.80 million below the adjusted budget expectations at year's end. Additionally,
macroeconomic trends including inflation is increasing the pressure on city expenditures, though
this is somewhat mitigated by numerous unfilled positions across city services, which
unfortunately also leads to a reduction in service provision.

PUBLIC OUTREACH / INTEREST

No outreach was deemed necessary for this informational report beyond the standard City
Council agenda noticing procedures.

COORDINATION

This report was prepared in coordination between the Finance Department, the City
Administrator’s Office and various departments.

SUSTAINABLE OPPORTUNITIES

Economic: No direct economic opportunities have been identified.
Environmental: No direct environmental impacts have been identified.

Race & Equity: No direct Race & Equity opportunities have been identified in this informational
report.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024

Page 13

ACTION REQUESTED OF THE CITY COUNCIL

Staff Recommends That City Council Receive An Informational Report On Fiscal Year (FY)
2023-24 Fourth Quarter (Q4) Revenue And Expenditure (R&E) Results For The General
Purpose Fund (GPF, 1010), And Select Funds, Preliminary Analysis of the Condition of the FY
2024-25 Budget, and Information on the City's Fiscal Condition & Fiscal Challenges.

For questions regarding this report, please contact Bradley Johnson, Budget Administrator, at
(510) 238-6119.

Attachments:

A:

FY 2023-24 Q4 Detailed Report

Respectfully submitted,

eSO

Erin Roseman (OCY 10, 2024 16:08 PDT)

Erin Roseman
Director of Finance, Finance Department

Reviewed by:
Bradley Johnson, Budget Administrator
Sherry Jackson, Revenue & Tax Administrator

Prepared by: Revenue Management Bureau &
Budget Bureau:

Agaba, Rogers

Dang, Huey

Mariano, Daniel

Maurer, Chuck

Segura, Jose

Soares, Michelle

Stabler, Rina

Urrutia, Kristin

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator

Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024

Page 1

Attachment A: FY 2023-24 Q4 Detailed Report

TABLE OF CONTENTS

The report has the following major sections:

1. General Purpose Fund Q4 Revenues

2. General Purpose Fund Q4 Expenditures

3. General Purpose Fund Q4 Fund Balance

4. Reserves

5. Select Non-GPF Summaries
Appendixes:

Consolidated Fiscal Policy

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024

Page 2

Summary of FY 2023-24 Q4 GPF Revenues & Expenditures

FY 2023-24 GPF Revenue came in at $734.68 million, which is $129.00 million or 14.9% under
the Adjusted Budget of $863.68 million. GPF Expenditures came in at $814.52 million, which is
$49.16 million or 5.7% under the Adjusted Budget of $863.68 million. Table 1 below shows the
FY 2023-24 General Purpose Fund Adjusted Budget and year-end actuals for revenues and
expenditures, which ended with a year-end operating shortfall of $79.84 million or 9.2%.

Table 1: Summary of FY 2023-24 Q4 GPF Revenues & Expenditures Budget to Estimated
Year-End Actuals ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Projected Year-End %
A dj||:JYst2e (llzg-uz:get Y:aYr-zlgr?c?ﬁ:tS:Is Over / Under (Over) / Under Adopted
Adjusted Budget Budget

FY 2023-24 863.68 734.69 (129.00 (14.9)%
Revenues
FY2023-24 863.68 814.52 49.16 5.7 %
Expenditures
Operating
(Shortfall) / — (79.84 (79.84 (9-2)%
Surplus

1. GENERAL PURPOSE FUND FY 2023-24 Q4 REVENUES

The revenue in the General Purpose Fund (GPF) ended the fiscal year at $734.68 million, which
is $129.00 million or 14.9% under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $863.68 million. The
Adjusted Budget included the use of $30.12 million from the fund balance to cover adopted
expenditures and $27.97 million in use of the fund balance to cover prior year carry-forwards.
Excluding these one-time funds, actual GPF revenues ended with a shortfall of $70.91 million
compared to the $805.59 million estimated in the Adjusted Budget. Persistent high inflation has
reduced purchasing power, potentially decreasing tax revenue as consumers buy less or opt for
cheaper alternatives. High interest rates are directly impacting Real Estate Transfer Taxes by
cooling the housing market, reducing property sales, and thus lowering tax revenue from property
transactions. Similarly, higher interest rates have also made other financing more expensive,
which decreased automobile sales and reduced spending in general, impacting Sales Tax,
Business Tax, and other consumer-driven revenues. Perceived increased theft and vandalism
further reduced local tax bases by deterring business investment and consumer spending in
affected areas,

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 3

FY 2023-24 Q4 REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS

Property Tax: The largest revenue source for the City ended the year at $299.15 million, which
is $4.98 million or 1.7% above the FY 2023-24 adjusted budget of $294.17 million. In comparison
FY 2022-23 ended the year at $281.28 million. The year over year increase is driven by the overall
increase in assessed taxable values in the City of approximately 6.6% according to the most
recent County Property Tax Rolls, which results in a proportional increase in the amount of
property tax assessments. Growth was led by residential assessed values which increased by
7.9% for a total of $4.63 billion, followed by commercial properties which posted an increase in
assessed value of $599 million or a year over year increase of 5.2%, and by industrial properties
which posted gains in assessed value of $302.3 million or 9.6%.

The largest secured roll increase was reported on a developing vacant property owned by CVOW
Parcel J Owner LLC at 37 8th Avenue with a growth of $116.6 million. This is an 8-story residential
building under development as part of the Brooklyn Development in the Brooklyn Basin of
Downtown Oakland. The second largest increase in property value came from an office building
in Downtown Oakland owned by 300 F Ogawa Plaza LP at the same address, which reported an
increase in value of $94.1 million between FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24. This property
reevaluation was due after the current owner purchased the property in 2021. The third highest
increase in property value came from a vacant site developing into a mixed-use site in downtown
Oakland. Owned by 19 Bdwy Tower Development LLC, at 1920 Broadway, the added
improvements to the property resulted in an increase in assessed value of $62 million.

Business License Tax (BT): The second largest revenue source ended the year at $123.48
million, which is $1.77 million or 1.4% under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $125.25 million.
This discrepancy primarily stems from certain economic sectors underperforming compared to
budget assumptions led by the Construction, Utilities, and Property Rental sectors which
experienced a decrease in activity compared to the previous year. However, overall businesses
that renewed their tax filings in FY 2023-24 showed a 1.3% rise in gross receipts compared to the
previous year. This year's growth rate is slightly below the 2.7% average annual percentage
increase in gross receipts reported for account renewals over the previous four fiscal years. In
total, FY 2023-24 saw an increase of $8.10 million in BT collected compared to the FY 2022-23
year-end total of $115.38 million. This growth was predominantly driven by increases in amounts
collected from Professional Services, Administrative Headquarters, and Wholesale Sales. The
November 17, 2023, report to the City Council on Measure T's implementation showed that these
three categories accounted for approximately 47.5% of the overall net revenue increase from the
amended business tax structure resulting from Measure T, totaling about $8.3 million in growth
annually.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 4

Real Estate Transfer Tax (RETT): The third largest revenue source for the City ended the fiscal
year at $57.61 million, which is $52.80 million, or 47.8% under the FY 2023-24 adjusted budget
of $110.41 million, representing the largest shortfall in the GPF. The significant reduction is
attributable to rising interest rates that impact the affordability factor and consequently the number
of property sales subject to RETT. To combat inflation, the Federal Open Market Committee
(FOMC) raised and maintained the federal funds rate at the 5.25%-5.50% range throughout the
fiscal year. This has led to an increase in mortgage rates, with the 30-year fixed rate being at
6.95% as of June 27, 2024, according to the Freddie-Mac Mortgage Market Survey Archive.
Higher interest rates make home buying more expensive, reducing buyer interest and transaction
volume.

The number of properties sold during FY 2023-24 dropped by 371 properties, compared to the
number of properties sold in the prior year. The notable decrease in transaction volume, dropping
from 3,680 in FY 2022-23 to 3,309 in FY 2023-24, represents a reduction of about 10.1%. The
volume decreased is amplified when considering that the gross sales fell by 19.6% when
accounting for the sales prices. There's been a significant drop in high-value property
transactions. Only 25 properties valued over $5 million were sold in FY 2023-24, compared to 38
in the previous year, representing a 34.2% decline. For properties over $10 million, the numbers
fell from 18 to 13 or by 27.7%.

The FOMC made a significant move by cutting interest rates by 50 basis points in September
2024, bringing the federal funds rate target range to 4.75% to 5.00%. This was the first rate cut
since 2020, signaling an aggressive approach to stimulate economic activity amid signs of
economic slowdown or to prevent a steeper downturn. Looking into 2025, there are expectations
for additional cuts, which could lead to a gradual recovery for the market as financing for
properties becomes less expensive over time.

Table 2 below provides the year over year variance in gross sales and volume by sales price tiers.

Table 2: RETT Growth Rate ($ in millions)

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 Yearover-Year

Sale Price Gross Sales| Volume | Gross Sales| Volume | Gross Sales| Volume

$300,000 or below $ 37.44 229 $39.28 225 4.9 % (1.7) %4
$300,001 to $2 Million | $ 2,877.48 3,168 $2,597.53 2,880 (9.7) % (9.1) %
$2 million to $5 Million | $ 674.24 245 $474.03 179 (29.7)% (26.9)%
$5 -10 Million $ 139.54 20 $79.17 12 (43.3)% (40.0)%
$10 - 50 Million $ 293.32 14 $217.85 11 (25.7)% (21.4)%
$50.01-100 Million $ 212.65] 3 $126.28 4 (40.6)% (33.3)%
Over $100 Million $ 163.29 1 $0.00| $ — — % — %
Total $ 4,397.96 3,680 $3,534.14 3,309 (19.6)% (10.1)%

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 5

Sales Tax: The fourth largest revenue source for the City ended the year at $62.27 million, which
is $5.95 million, or 8.8% under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $67.69 million. FY 2023-24 for
Oakland has been marked by a significant downturn in Sales Tax receipts. This decline reflects
broader economic trends influenced by moderating inflation and shifts in consumer behavior.
Inflation, though less aggressive than in previous periods, has left its imprint on the economy. Its
moderation has somewhat stabilized prices, yet the overall impact has led to a contraction in
certain business sectors, directly affecting sales tax revenue. Sales Tax is collected by the State
and the corresponding detailed data becomes available to the City in the subsequent quarter.
Oakland’s receipts through the third quarter in FY 2023-24 were on average 6.2% below the third
quarter mark in FY 2022-23 across the various Sales Tax categories as shown on Table 3 below.

Leading the shortfall were Fuel and Service Stations which declined by 23.0% compared to the
FY 2022-23 Q3. Service station revenues were slightly up and right in line with the statewide
average. However, taxes from jet fuel declined as airlines sought cheaper locations to fuel aircraft
and cargo outside of the area. New motor vehicle sales also absorbed a decrease as buyers
steered toward affordable models and stayed away from luxury brands, as prices and the cost of
financing increased. As a result through Q3, the Autos and Transportation sector declined by
11.3% year over year. General Consumer Goods posted a decrease in receipts and the
decadence was furthered by a large store closure resulting in a 12.2% year over year decline for
this category. Retail declines follow a nationwide trend towards online shopping and a preference
for services over goods, which led to decreases in physical retail, impacting sales tax collections
traditionally sustained by in-store purchases. Despite declines in all sales tax sub-categories, a
significant decrease in another agency's receipts increased the City's share of the County pool,
boosting the State/County Pool & Transfers category by 8.9% year over year through Q3.

Table 3 below provides a year over year comparison of Sales Tax by Category through Q3.

Table 3: Sales Tax Comparison by Category FY2022-23 and FY 2023-24 ($ in millions)

Thru Q3 Thru Q3

Category FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 Inc/Dec

Autos & Transportation $ 7.68 $ 6.89 -11.3%
Building & Construction $ 4.56 $ 4.42 -3.2%
Business & Industry $ 4.55 $ 4.14 -9.7%
Food & Drugs $ 404 §$ 3.60 -12.7%
Fuel & Service Stations $ 6.26 $ 5.09 -23.0%
General Consumer Goods $ 412 $ 3.67 -12.2%
Restaurants & Hotels $ 8.08 $ 7.87 -2.7%
State/County Pools & Transfers $ 8.41 $ 9.23 8.9%
Average $ 5.96 $ 5.61 -6.2%

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 6

Utility Consumption Tax: This fifth largest revenue source for the City ended the year at $66.22
million which is $4.32 million or 7.0% above the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $61.90 million.
The increase is attributed to the approval of a 12.8% rate increase in consumer utility rates,
approved by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) which took effect in the second
half of the fiscal year.

Interfund Transfers & Transfers from Fund Balance: The adjusted budget assumes $30.12
million in use of fund balance to balance budgeted expenditures and $27.97 million in use of fund
balance to support carryforward expenditures. Additionally, there is $13.08 million budgeted in
anticipated interfund transfers.

All Other Revenue Sources:

Table 4 below summarizes the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget to actuals performance by revenue
category in the GPF. Other notable GPF revenues in FY 2023-24 include:

Miscellaneous Revenues: FY 2023-24 ended at $9.14 million, a shortfall of $12.08 million or
56.9% under the $21.22 million budget, mainly due to a delayed land sale.

Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT): Collected $18.93 million, $3.55 million or 15.8% under budget.
Decline attributed to reduced hotel collections near the airport and fewer TOT accounts, down
from 70 to 68.

Service Charges: Revenues were $46.98 million, falling under the Adjusted Budget by
$5.38million or 10.3% due to lower collections in parking meter fees.

Fines and Penalties: Achieved $19.19 million, $3.89 million or 16.8% under budget. Parking
fines did not increase as expected, and an Automatic License Plate Reader (ALPR) vehicle
deployment for enforcement was hindered by legal issues.

Parking Tax: Reached $11.87 million, exceeding the Adjusted Budget by $0.61 million or 5.4%.
Downtown areas saw significant increases, while the airport area experienced a 6% decline in
collections.

All revenue categories as summarized on Table 4 below.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 7

Table 4: FY 2023-24 Q4 Adopted Budget to Actuals and Year End Estimate ($ in millions)

FY 2023-24 Q4 | Year-End $ Over/| Year-End % Over/
FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 ) ’ b
Revenue Category Adopted Budget | Adjusted Budget YTDAli:\::Iglted Und;ruggjeutsted Undgruﬁgjeutsted
Property Tax 294 17 294 17 299.15 4,98 1.7 %
Business License Tax 125.25 125.25 123.48 (1.77) (1.4) %
Real Estate Transfer
Tax 110.41 110.41 57.61 (52.80) (47.8) %
Sales Tax 67.69 67.69 61.74 (5.95) (8.8) %
Utility Consumption
Tax 61.90 61.90 66.22 4.32 7.0 %
Service Charges 51.60 52.36 46.98 (5.38) (10.3) %
Fines & Penalties 23.07 23.07 19.19 (3.89) (16.8) %
Transient Occupancy
Tax 22.48 22.48 18.93 (3.55) (15.8) %
Miscellaneous
Revenue 21.22 21.22 9.14 (12.08) (56.9) %
Interfund Transfers 13.08 13.08 13.08 — — %
Parking Tax 11.26 11.26 11.87 0.61 5.4 %|
Licenses & Permits 1.39 1.39 1.44 0.05 3.4%
Interest Income 0.48 0.48 3.55 3.07] 633.3%
Grants & Subsidies — 0.82 1.77 0.95 115.5%)
Internal Service Funds — —] —] — N/A
Subtotal 804.00 805.59 734.68 (70.91) (8.8) %]
Transfers from Fund
Balance 30.12 30.12 — (30.12) (100.0) %
Project Offsets &
Carryforwards — 27.97 — (27.97) (100.0) %
Total Revenue 834.12 863.68 734.68 (129.00) (14.9) %

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 8

Il. GENERAL PURPOSE FUND FY 2023-24 Q4 EXPENDITURES

GENERAL PURPOSE FUND EXPENDITURE HIGHLIGHTS

Unaudited GPF expenditures ended the year at $814.52 million, or $49.16 million under the
Adjusted Budget of $863.68 million. The Adjusted Budget required a use of fund balance in the
amount of $30.12 million to balance the expenditures as budgeted. This follows a trend in recent
years, during which one-time funding was needed in the balancing of the FY2019-20, FY2020-
21, FY2021-22 and FY2022-23 expenditures in the budget by programming CARES dollars
($36.99 million), ARPA dollars ($188 million), and use of VSSF ($14.65 million) for a total of
$239.64 million, which would equal 27% of FY 2023-24 GPF budgeted expenditures. The
budgeted personnel expenditures also assume a vacancy factor of 8.00%, it is expected that the
actual vacancy factor will be higher with the hiring freeze in effect.

On March 27, 2024, the City Administrator released a memo outlining several policies to be
implemented immediately that would help reduce City expenditures, primarily in the GPF. A hiring
freeze went into effect for all non-sworn positions for the remainder of FY 2023-24. Additionally,
there was a citywide moratorium on professional training and conference requests funded through
the GPF. All other discretionary spending in the GPF was limited as the City attempted to bridge
the widening gap between GPF revenues and expenditures.

On June 26, 2024, the City Administrator presented an Informational Report to the City Council
outlining several actions the City could take to reduce the deficit in the GPF. One of the actions
included was the fiscal retrenchment of carryforward funds in the GPF based on the inaction to
utilize the funds and the lack of funding in the GPF fund balance by year-end. This resulted in a
reduction in the Adjusted Budget and realized savings of approximately $26.5 million. Additionally,
approximately $1 million in CIP Department projects was transferred either into eligible bond funds
or the Facilities Fund. This cost saving measure resulted in a few departments to slightly exceed
their budget during the fiscal year.

On August 23, 2024, prior to the closure of FY23-24, departments were tasked with moving
eligible labor costs out of the GPF into other eligible funding sources. The goal was to help
alleviate the growing deficit in the GPF. This cost saving measure resulted in about $12.5 million
transferred out of the GPF into other eligible funding sources.

Overall, the increase in the appropriations level compared to previous years merits further
consideration as it reflects the current global inflationary trend affecting the economy.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 9

Table 5 below reflects the GPF expenditures at $816.96 million, which is $46.72 million or 5.4%
under the adjusted budget of $863.68 million.

Table 5: Summary of FY 2023-24 Q4 GPF Expenditures Budget to Actuals ($ in millions)

FY 202324 | Year-End$ | Year-End %

FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Q4 Year-End (Over) /Under | (Over)/Under

Adopted Budget | Adjusted Budget Adjusted Adjusted
Actuals
Budget Budget
FY 2023-24 834.12 863.68 814.52 49.16 5.7 %

Expenditures

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 10

Department Level Spending Trends

Table 6 below reflects department level spending and year-end GPF expenditures. As a result,
City-wide GPF departmental expenditures came in below the Adjusted Budget by $49.16 million.

Table 6: Summary of FY 2023-24 GPF Projected Expenditure Variance ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
Department FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Q4 (Over) / Under (Over) / Under
A B Adj B Year-End A | . Adj
dopted Budget djusted Budget | Year-End Actuals Adjusted Budget Bdmsgt::i

Capital
Improvement
Projects 0.55 1.89 0.59 1.30 68.8%
City
Administrator 9.81 11.31 8.38 2.93 25.9%
City Attorney 21.75 23.38 20.56 2.82 12.1%
City Auditor 3.31 3.60 2.31 1.29 35.7%
City Clerk 7.85 7.94 5.42 2.53 31.8%
City Council 7.12 7.26 6.38 0.89 12.2%
Department of
Transportation 20.54 22.53 22.14 0.39 1.7%
Department of
Violence
Prevention 10.79 13.08 10.43 2.64 20.2%
Department of
Workplace and
Employment
Standard 4.31 4.92 4.91 0.01 0.2%
Economic and
Workforce
Development
Department 11.19 14.01 9.60 4.41 31.5%
Finance
Department 30.00 33.18 25.78 7.41 22.3%
Fire Department 199.87] 200.37] 186.70 13.67] 6.8%
Housing and
Community
Development
Department 0.24 1.01 2.88 (1.87 (185.5)%
Human
Resources
Management
Department 9.50 9.79 8.72 1.07) 11.0%
Human Services
Department 44.76 41.92 44.36 (2.44 (5.8)%

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 11
Year-End %
Year-End $
FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Q4 (Over) / Under
Department Adopted Budget | Adjusted Budget | Year-End Actuals A(;_)ver) IR Adjusted
justed Budget Budget

Information
Technology
Department 16.97 18.67] 15.04 3.63 19.4%
Mayor 4.60 4.66 4.02 0.65 13.9%
Non
Departmental
and Port 55.60 60.69 34.82 25.73 42.5%
Oakland Animal
Services 6.49 6.54 5.84 0.70 10.7%
Oakland Parks
and Recreation
Department 18.30 19.06 14.91 4.14 21.8%
Oakland Public
Library
Department 12.31 12.32 10.54 1.77 14.4%
Oakland Public
Works
Department 1.36 1.84 2.50 (0.66 (35.7)%
Police
Commission 7.96 8.14 6.16 1.97 24.3%
Police
Department 325.39 332.05 358.57] (26.38 (7.9)%
Public Ethics
Commission 2.25 2.07 1.75 0.32 15.5%
Race and Equity
Department 1.29 1.44 1.22 0.22 15.2%
Total 834.12 863.68 814.52 49.16 5.7%

The following section details Q4 GPF savings or overspending by Department, as compared to
the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget.

Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

The Capital Improvement Program has savings of $1.30 million, or 68.8% of the CIP Adjusted
Budget.

City Administrator (CAQO)

The City Administrator’s Office has savings of $2.93 million, or 26% of their budget, due to
vacancies. $1.9 million of the total savings is from unspent O&M. In the General Purpose Fund,
CAO has a vacancy rate of 15%, with six vacant positions.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 12

City Attorney (OCA)

The City Attorney has savings of $2.82 million, or 11% of their budget, due to vacancies. $1.5
million of the total savings is from unspent O&M. In the General Purpose Fund, OCA has a
vacancy rate of 10%, with six vacant positions.

City Auditor

The City Auditor has savings of $1.29 million, or 36% of their budget, due to vacancies. In the
General Purpose Fund, City Auditor has a vacancy rate of 25%, with three vacant positions.

City Clerk
The Office of the City Clerk has savings of $2.53 million, or 32% of their budget, due to

vacancies. $2.0 million of the total savings is from unspent O&M. In the General Purpose Fund,
City Clerk has a vacancy rate of 17%, with two vacant positions.

City Council

The City Council has savings of $0.89 million, or 12% of their budget, due to vacancies. In the
General Purpose Fund, the City Council has a vacancy rate of 3%, with one vacant position.

Department of Transportation (DOT)

The Department of Transportation has savings of $0.39 million, or 4% of their budget, due to
vacancies. In the General Purpose Fund, DOT has a vacancy rate of 11%, with ten vacant
positions.

Department of Violence Prevention (DVP)

The Department of Violence Prevention has savings of $2.64 million, or 21% of their budget,
due to vacancies. $700,000 of the total savings is from unspent O&M. In the General Purpose
Fund, DVP has a vacancy rate of 19%, with six vacant positions.

Department of Workplace & Employment Standards (DWES)

The Department of Workplace & Employment Standards has savings of $0.01 million, or 0.24%
of their budget. In the General Purpose Fund, DWES has a vacancy rate of 12%, with two
vacant positions.

Economic & Workforce Development (EWD)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 13

Economic & Workforce Development has savings of $4.41 million, or 32% of their budget, due
to vacancies. $3.0 million of the total savings is from unspent O&M. In the General Purpose
Fund, DWES has a vacancy rate of 27%, with six vacant positions.

Finance Department

The Finance Department has savings of $7.41 million, or 22% of their budget, due to vacancies.
$3.4 million of the total savings is from unspent O&M. In the General Purpose Fund, Finance
has a vacancy rate of 12%, with 14 vacant positions.

Fire Department

The Oakland Fire Department has savings of $13.67 million, or 8% of their budget. In the
General Purpose Fund, Fire has a vacancy rate of 17%, with 96 vacant positions which results
in savings in the amount of $26.59 million. However, these estimated savings from the
vacancies are partially offset by $15.43 million in over-time overspending resulting in a net
personnel year-end underspend in the amount of $11.16 million.

Housing & Community Development (HCD)

Housing & Community Development overspent by $1.87 million, or 185.5% of their Adjusted
Budget. The overspending is due to grants related to the Homeless Prevention Pilot Program
and legal services for prisoners with children, and unreimbursed federal FEMA expenditures for
residents of the Coliseum Connections housing development.

Human Resources Management (HRM)

Human Resources Management has savings of $1.07 million, or 11% of their budget, due to
vacancies. In the General Purpose Fund, HRM has a vacancy rate of 9%, with three vacant
positions.

Human Services Department (HSD)

Human Services Department overspent by $2.44 million, or 5.8% of their budget. This is
primarily due to unreimbursed Federal FEMA Expenditures related to homelessness. In the
General Purpose Fund, HSD has a vacancy rate of 11%, with four vacant positions.

Information Technology (ITD)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 14

The Information Technology Department has savings of $3.63 million, or 19% of their budget,
due to vacancies. $1.5 million of the total savings is from unspent O&M. In the General Purpose
Fund, ITD has a vacancy rate of 21%, with twelve vacant positions.

Mayor’s Office

The Mayor’s Office has savings of $0.65 million, or 14% of their budget, due to vacancies. In the
General Purpose Fund, Mayor's Office has a vacancy rate of 9%, with one vacant position.

Non-Departmental

Non-Departmental has savings of $25.73 million, or 38% of the Adjusted Budget. The savings
were primarily from $9 million in savings that were intended for the replacement of City vehicles
and about $5 million in prior year carryforward funds. Additionally, there was about $2 million in
savings from unspent funds for long-term liabilities.

QOakland Animal Services

The Department of Animal Services has savings of $0.70 million, or 11% of their budget, due to
vacancies. In the General Purpose Fund, Animal Services has a vacancy rate of 19%, with six
vacant positions.

QOakland Parks, Recreation and Youth Development (OPRYD)

Oakland Parks, Recreation and Youth Development has savings of $4.16 million, or 22% of their
budget, due to vacancies. In the General Purpose Fund, OPRYD has a vacancy rate of 25%,
with 26 vacant positions.

Oakland Public Library (OPL)

Oakland Public Library has savings of $1.77 million, or 14% of their budget, due to vacancies. In
the General Purpose Fund, OPL has a vacancy rate of 10%, with four vacant positions.

Qakland Public Works (OPW)

Oakland Public Works overspent by $0.66 million, or 35.7% of their Adjusted Budget.

Police Commission

The Police Commission has savings of $1.97 million, or 24% of their budget, due to vacancies.
In the General Purpose Fund, the Police Commission has a vacancy rate of 24%, with six
vacant positions.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator

Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024

Page 15

Police Department

The Police Department overspent by $26.38 million, or 8% of their budget, primarily due to
overtime overspending. A detailed explanation of this overage can be found in the "Public Safety

Costs & Analysis" section below.

Public Ethics Commission (PEC)

The Public Ethics Commission has savings of $0.32 million, or 16% of their budget. In the
General Purpose Fund, PEC has a vacancy rate of 0%, with no vacant positions.

Race & Equity

The Department of Race & Equity has savings of $0.22 million, which is 15% of their budget. In
the General Purpose Fund, Race & Equity has a vacancy rate of 0%, with no vacant positions.

Public Safety Costs & Analysis

Table 7 below shows the personnel expenditures, including overtime, for Public Safety in the
GPF. Once all other personnel costs are accounted for, Oakland Police Department shows the
personnel budget over spent by $21.76 million in the General Purpose Fund at year end. Details

are provided on Table 7 below.

Table 7: FY 2023-24 Public Safety GPF Personnel Expenditures ($ in millions)

FY2023-24 | Fy2023-24 |YEarENdS lyeargng o over
Department Adjusted Q4 Year-End Adjusted /Under Adjusted
Budget Actuals Budget Budget
Police Department
Overtime (OT) 24.19 55.25 (31.05) (128.3)%
Reimbursable OT (Special Events, (5.71) 5.71
All Other Personnel (non-OT) 262.50 259.83 3.58 14 %
OPD Total Personnel 286.69 309.37 (21.76) (7.6)%
Fire Department
Overtime (OT) 13.80 29.24 (15.43) (111.8) %
All Other Personnel (non-OT) 163.79 137.68 26.59 16.2%
OFD Total Personnel 177.59 166.91 11.16 6.3%

In Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24, the Oakland Police Department (OPD) overtime budget was
$24,190,510 and actual total overtime expenditures reached $55,247,289 (excluding salary
savings and reimbursable overtime), which exceeded the overtime budget by $31,056,779.
However, OPD recovered $6,512,910 through a combination of $805,667 in salary savings and
$5,707,243 in reimbursable overtime that reduced overall overtime spending. As shown in

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024

Page 16

Table 8, a monthly breakdown of overtime expenditures, along with offsetting salary savings and
reimbursable overtime amounts, is provided. After accounting for these offsets, the total net
overtime expenditures were $48,734,379, resulting in a net overspend of $24,543,869.

Table 8: Breakdown of OPD Overtime by Month

Adjusted
Loy g)‘:e:r:rgi‘:ures
Month Overtime #of Salary Reimbursable |Savings + (N:t Sala
Expenditures | Vacancies |Savings Overtime Reimbursable ; y
oT) Savings +

Reimbursable

oT)
July 4,728,493 -2 -48,828 455,306 406,478 4,322,015
August 4,600,311 2 48,828 557,292 606,120 3,994,191
September 5,324,585 48,828 547,652 596,480 4,728,105
October 4,308,380 122,071 419,549 541,619 3,766,761
November 4,913,592 10 244,141 386,690 630,831 4,282,761
December 4,426,225 -13 -317,384 319,653 2,270 4,423,955
January 4,340,559 -1 -24,414 256,894 232,480 4,108,079
February 4,200,458 24,414 317,131 341,545 3,858,912
March 5,045,833 3 73,242 587,281 660,523 4,385,310
April 4,679,230 8 195,313 563,868 759,181 3,920,049
May 5,212,349 13 317,384 680,558 997,942 4,214,407
June 4,810,992 5 122,071 615,369 737,440 4,073,552
Total 55,247,289 33 805,667 5,707,243 6,512,910 48,734,379

Table 9 below provides an overview of the FY 23-24 overtime budget and expenditures,
including the allocated budget, total annual overtime expenses, variance from the budget, total
recovered savings, and net overtime costs after accounting for these savings.

Table 9: OPD Overtime Calculation Summary

FY 23-24
FY23-24 FY23-24 Variance Salary Savings [Net Overtime [(Over)/
Overtime Overtime (Over) /Under (& Expenditures (Under
Budget Expenditures |Budget Reimbursable (for FY23-24 |Budget
OT Total
24,190,510 55,247,289 (31,056,779) 6,512,910 48,734,379 (24,543,869)

Table 10 below provides a breakdown of the FY 23-24 budgeted overtime (July 1, 2023, through
June 30, 2024) by organization number and name and the variance in the Department's
overtime based on Q4 payroll data, covering the period.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024




Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 17

Table 10: Breakdown of OPD Overtime by Organization

Organization Number and Name (ZYI-)Z 3-24 Budget g\?;itlime ég;;gtl dnder
101110 - Office of Chief: Administration 13,346 128,275 (114,929)
101112 - Public Information 45,747 J 45,747
101120 - Internal Affairs 525 062 1,013,228 (488,166)
101130 - Office of the Inspector General 105,570 93,309 12,261
101140 - Intelligence Unit 70,380 287,724 (217,344)
102120 - Property and Evidence 130,035 168,442 (38,407)
102130 - Special Victims Section 501,675 1,491,642 (989,967)
102140 - Research, Planning and Crime

Analysis 7,918 39,881 (31,963)
102280 - Crime Analysis Section i 3,904 (3,904)
102310 - Criminal Investigation 143,068 249,058 (105,990)
102320 - Homicide 391,404 3,605,901 (3,214,497)
102321 - Misdemeanor Crimes and Task Forces 194,490 1,021,698 (827,208)
102324 - Felony Assault and Gang Section il 144,187, (144,187)
102330 - Robbery and Burglary Section 200,306 1,666,642 (1,466,336)
102331 - Assault - 1,699 (1,699)
102341 - Field Support 12,917 29,401 (16,484)
102342 - Violent Crime Operations Center il 1,184,271 (1,184,271)
102350 - Youth and School Services Section 40,619 77,272 (36,653)
102610 - Criminalistics 17,510 7.502 10,008
103110 - Bureau of Services: Administration 1,030 32,604 (31,574)
103240 - Records i 384 (384)
103242 - Records and Warrants 529,420 760,179 (230,759)
103310 - Communications 2,631,199 2,853,236 (222,037)
103430 - Training Unit 2,357,315 2,969,082 (611,767)
106210 - Police Personnel 47,230 123,612 (76,382)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator

Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 18

Organization Number and Name (51-)2 3-24 Budget Jf;ft'ime éggggtl dnder

106410 - Police Information Tech 217,150 8,003 209,147
106510 - Budget Accounting 20,600 56,813 (36,213)
106610 - Background and Recruiting 357,050 957,126 (600,076)
106810 - PAS Administration 138,299 60,006 78.203
107010 - Bureau of Field Operations-Admin 1759 567 1,192
107110 - Bureau of Field Operations 1 i 27,302 (27,302)
107210 - Bureau of Field Operations 2 _ 3,317 (3,317)
107410 - Support Operations 3,519 24,500 (20,981)
107510 - Traffic Operations 593,342 412,173 181,169
107710 - Special Operations 4,224,081 11,272,865 (7,048,784)
108010 - District Command Administration 77,311 377,813 (300,502)
108110 - District Area 1 2,100,378 5,825,623 (3,725,245)
108120 - District Area 2 1,913,471 3,109,517 (1,196,046)
108130 - District Area 3 1,974,503 3,982,935 (2,008,432)
108140 - District Area 4 2,052,314 3,156,419 (1,104,105)
108150 - District Area 5 2,145,698 3,829,264 (1,683,566)
108160 - District Area 6 - 2,822,997 (2,822,997)
108630 - Ceasefire 404,794 1,366,915 (962,121)
Grand Total 24,190,510 55,247,289 (31,056,779)

Table 11 below highlights the five areas within OPD with the highest overspending in Q4.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 19

Table 11: Top 5 OPD Organizations Overtime Overspending

FY 23-24 Budget
Top 5 Units to Overspend (OT) Total Overtime |Variance
107710 - Special Operations 4,224,081 11,272,865 (7,048,784)
108110 - District Area 1 2,100,378 5,825,623 (3,725,245)
102320 - Homicide 391,404 3,605,901 (3,214,497)
108130 - District Area 3 1,974,503 3,982,935 (2,008,432)
108150 - District Area 5 2,145,698 3,829,264 (1,683,566)

The Department's primary goals are to reduce violent crime and enhance public safety.
Achieving these objectives required overtime and increased spending in the Homicide Section,
Special Operations Division (SOD), and Areas 1, 3, and 5.

Special Operations Division: The Special Operations Division (SOD) plays a critical role in the
Department's law enforcement efforts and is comprised of 11 sergeants, three lieutenants, and a
captain. Increased overtime expenditures were driven by substantial administrative
responsibilities, including preliminary investigations, division-level inquiries, use of force
investigations, and risk management-related tasks.

In Q4, SOD's overtime costs exceeded its budget primarily due to numerous special events
requiring operational staff to work overtime. While these events were reimbursable, the funds
were directed back into the general-purpose fund rather than offsetting SOD's operational costs.

Additionally, the Air Unit within SOD was essential to the Department's crime reduction
strategies and operated nearly seven days a week. Despite having six members, one was on
long-term modified duty and unable to pilot. The limited number of trained pilots required
qualified personnel to work overtime to meet operational demands. Overtime costs were
covered by the 'Restore' fund, which is specifically designated for overtime expenses.

Area 1: In Q4, Area 1 undertook several targeted overtime deployments authorized by the
captain to address specific safety and crime issues. These initiatives included a Violence
Suppression detail consisting of one sergeant and four police officers, a Chinatown detail staffed
with four police officers, and a Night Club detail, typically active on weekends with one sergeant
and three to five police officers. Additionally, the Big Four Detail was funded by third-party
reimbursable overtime. As a long- term strategy for weekend nights was being developed,
overtime officers provided a visible downtown presence, supported by shifting resources from
patrol units.

From late March to mid-April 2024, the Chinatown detail was temporarily understaffed but was
fully operational by mid-April with the authorized personnel. The officer's presence had a strong

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 20

deterrent effect, correlating with a significant reduction in robberies and thefts in Area 1, which
had previously seen an increase in such crimes. This strategic deployment of resources
highlights Area 1's proactive approach to effectively managing and reducing crime.

Homicide Section: The Homicide Section maintains a 68% clearance rate. In 04, 15 sworn
personnel were responsible for investigating 68 homicide cases and handling hundreds of
unexplained deaths. Their extensive responsibilities included following up on older cases with
the Cold Case Unit, mandatory training, and managing numerous outstanding witness and
suspect warrants. This frequently involved overnight interviews and off-hour work.

Despite the demands, the Homicide Section continued to meet its goals while also managing
court appearances, which have become more demanding with the increased use of video and
digital forensic evidence. Investigators were responsible for analyzing the evidence, as OPD
does not have a dedicated team of evidence analysts. Thus, in any given case, the investigator
will serve as the detective, evidence recovery specialist, digital forensics expert, interviewer,
legal analyst, administrative professional, and court testifier. Staffing challenges in the Homicide
Section have led to ongoing overtime usage to maintain the quantity and quality of
investigations.

Area 3: In Q4, Area 3's overtime expenditures were driven by various initiatives, including
deploying Violence Suppression officers in the San Antonio/Saigon Area, addressing human
trafficking along International Boulevard, and managing large gatherings at Lake Merritt during
summer weekends. Mandatory overtime was required to backfill positions for officers on
training, sick leave, or vacation and to address administrative deadlines amid investigation
backlogs.

Early in 2024, Area 3 experienced an initial 80% surge in robberies, which was reduced to a
28% increase by April. The consistent, seven-day-a-week operations of the Violence
Suppression unit played a crucial role in addressing these issues. Most of the violence in Area 3
is linked to human trafficking activities along International Boulevard, where the OPD's Vice Unit
conducts two to four operations each month. These operations are partially reimbursable by the
FBI, ranging from $7,000 to $10,000 annually, while OPD's portion ranges between $80,000 and
$120,000 annually.

The summer months saw heightened activity at Lake Merritt, requiring an increased police
presence funded by a $200,000 budget to ensure weekend safety. Following a mass shooting
on Juneteenth 2024 at Grand Avenue and Bellevue, Area 3 significantly increased police
presence during Lakefest 2024, leading to substantial overtime costs to ensure public safety.

Area 5: In Q4, Area S's violence suppression teams were actively deployed, primarily funded by
the area itself, to address rising crime rates. These units significantly aided the Bureau of Field
Operations 2, contributing to an 18% reduction in assaults involving firearms and a significant
52% decrease in homicides, with only ten incidents during the reporting period compared to 21
at the same time last year.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 21

Area 5 implemented five violence suppression overtime assignments, each focused on a
specific sector. Teams were instructed to remain within their designated sectors, ensuring high
visibility and conducting necessary enforcement and security checks. These sectors were
chosen based on a comprehensive analysis of crime statistics and ShotSpotter activations,

identifying areas with the highest levels of violent crime. Weekly evaluations of these sectors
allowed for tactical adjustments in response to shifting crime trends. Due to the presence and
effectiveness of these units, the Crime Reduction Team (CRT) East allocated minimal resources
to Area 5, allowing for more concentrated efforts in Areas 4 and 6.

Table 12: Year-Over-Year Comparison of Public Safety GPF Personnel Expenditures ($ in

millions)
Police Department
Overtime (OT)| FY 2019-20| FY 2020-21| FY 2021-22| FY 2022-23| FY 2023-24
Adjusted Budget 16.56 15.39 33.36 30.90 24.08
Actuals 35.07 29.18 34.35 51.16 55.24
(Over)/Under (18.51) (13.79) (0.99) (20.26) (31.16)
All Other Personnel (non-OT)[ FY 2019-20( FY 2020-21| FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23| FY 2023-24
Adjusted Budget 232.95 239.29 245.01 252.38 262.47
Actuals 242.01 24423 234.29 182.02 263.46
(Over)/Under (9.06) (4.94) 10.71 70.36 4.09
Total Personnel| FY 2019-20| FY 2020-21| FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23| FY 2023-24
Adjusted Budget 249.51 254.68 278.37 283.28 286.55
Actuals 277.08 273.41 264.217 233.18 313.62
(Over)/Under (27.57) (18.73) 14.09 51.57 (27.07)
Fire Department
Overtime (OT)| FY 2019-20| FY 2020-21| FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23| FY 2023-24
Adjusted Budget 2.37 4.22 19.83 11.19 13.80
Actuals 20.63 24.22 29.83 29.96 29.24
(Over)/Under (18.26) (20.00) (10.00 (18.77) (15.43)
All Other Personnel (non-OT)[ FY 2019-20( FY 2020-21| FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23| FY 2023-24
Adjusted Budget 142.70 144.73 132.44 143.28 163.79
Actuals 123.59 126.99 119.50 129.85 137.19
(Over)/Under 19.11 17.74 12.94 13.44 26.59
Total Personnel| FY 2019-20| FY 2020-21| FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23| FY 2023-24
Adjusted Budget 145.07 148.95 152.27 154.47 177.59
Actuals 144 .22 151.21 149.33 159.80 166.43
(Over)/Under 0.85 (2.26) 2.94 (5.33) 11.16

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024

GENERAL PURPOSE FUND - FUND BALANCE

Page 22

The City's GPF Fund net obligations, is projected to end FY 2023-24 with a negative fund
balance. Table 13 below shows mandated reserves required by City Ordinances and the City
Charter, as well as other commitments that adjust or draw down on the GPF balance totaling
$30.40 million, decreasing the estimated FY 2023-24 year-end available fund balance to
negative $16.60 million. In addition, there are $55.06 million in additional possible carry
forwards that could further reduce the FY 2023-24 available fund balance to negative $71.66
million. The estimated FY 2023-24 available Fund Balance is the amount of unobligated

funding available to the City in the GPF.

Table 13: FY 2023-24 Year-End Available GPF Fund Balance

GENERAL PURPOSE FUND (1010) FY 2023-24 Q4 FYE
Estimated FY 2023-24 Beginning Audited Fund Balance 93.28
FY2023-24 Performance

Revenue 734.68
Expenditures 814.52
FY 2023-24 Operating Surplus / Deficit (79.84
Obligations Against Ending Fund Balance

Encumbrances (12.9
Settlement Set Aside (4.4
Required Carry Forward on to FY 2024-252 (12.74
FY 2023-24 Ending Maximum Available Fund Balance (16.60
Additional Possible Carry Forward on to FY 2024-25 (55.06
FY 2023-24 Ending Minimum Available Fund Balance (71.66)

2 Required Carryforward include funds that are tied to legally binding contracts or agreements, required to meet
legal settlement terms which may be restricted for specific uses, committed to payments that have processed,
matching funds necessary for federal grant programs, and planned used of carryforward funds adopted in the budget.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 23

IV. RESERVES

On December 9, 2014 Council Ordinance No. 13279 amended the City’s Consolidated Fiscal
Policies to include designated reserves for both the Vital Services Stabilization Fund and for the
acceleration of long-term obligations, in addition to the mandated 7.5% GPF Emergency
Reserve (refer to the City of Oakland Consolidated Fiscal Policy, Section |, Part C: Use of
Excess Real Estate Transfer Tax). It is important to note that while these balances are
designated each fiscal year, reserve appropriations adopted in subsequent fiscal years may
include any prior year true-ups.

Emergency Reserve

The City’s GPF Emergency Reserve, was calculated by multiplying 7.5% by the FY 2022-23
Adopted Budget amount of $872.07 million, plus accrued interest. The reserve is approximate to
one month of FY 2023-24 Adopted Budget in the GPF. This reserve is held in Fund 1011 as
directed by Council in Resolution 88717 C.M.S. The reserve requirement, pursuant to the CFP
has been met.

However, the emergency reserve policy level of 7.5% is inadequate to sustain city services in an
economic downturn as evidenced by the events of the last 2 years. The recommended policy
level is 16.7% or two months of operating expenditures. This recommended level is supported
by best practices outlined by the Government Finance Officer's Association's (GFOA).

Vital Services Stabilization Fund

The Vital Services Stabilization Fund (VSSF) was established in 2014 by City Council after the
Great Recession to serve as the City's "Rainy Day" fund. Per the Consolidated Fiscal Policy,
25% of excess RETT revenue is intended to go into the VSSF. The FY 2022-23 ending available
balance of $10.27 million was assumed in its entirety in the FY 2023-24 Adopted Budget to
balance expenditures as City Council declared that the City is experiencing a severe financial
event and state of extreme fiscal necessity. The target funding level per the City's Consolidated
Fiscal Policy is $125.22 million, or 15% of the GPF revenues.

Table 14 below shows the estimated FY 2023-24 year end reserve balances.

Table 14: FY 2023-24 Q4 Reserve Balances ($ in millions)

FY 2023-24 FYE Estimated
- Beginning 2023-2024
Description Balances Balances
Mandated Emergency Reserves FY 2022-23* 65.41 70.16
Vital Services Stabilization Fund 10.27] 0.50
OMERS Reserves (Reso. No. 85098 C.M.S) 2.36 2.36
Total Reserves 78.04 73.02

*The 7.5% GPF reserve is not a cumulative balance

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 24

V. SELECTED FY 2023-24 Q4 NON-GPF

This section of the Q4 report contains additional analysis on selected non-GPF funds. For
additional fund descriptions, please visit

https://stories.opengov.com/oaklandca/published/ dhbklVR|PB.This Q4 report discusses
selected funds that are of special interest to the City because the revenue comes from a special
tax or local measure, or because of the particular revenue or expenditure restrictions. For these
funds, the revenue and expenditure tables below will show year-end actuals compared to the
FY 2023-24 Adopted Budget.

The fund balance tables compare the FY 2023-24 beginning fund balance to the FY 2023-24
unaudited ending fund balance for these funds. Please note that some of the fund tables below
show a budgeted transfer from fund balance for FY 2024-25. These amounts represent dollars
designated to balance the Adopted Budget.

All other funds are summarized in Table 46.

Measure HH - Sugar Sweetened Beverage Distribution Tax (SSBT) Fund (1030)

Measure HH - SSBT Fund (1030) is a City of Oakland ballot initiative approved by voters on
November 8, 2016, that established a general tax of one cent per fluid ounce on the sugar
sweetened beverage products. The tax is imposed upon the first non-exempt distribution of
sugar-sweetened beverage products in the City. While this revenue is not restricted by State
statute, City Council has elected to restrict it by policy and separate it into its own fund because
the primary purpose of the tax is to raise revenue to support programs designed to discourage
sugar consumption and to reduce the growing burden of obesity and non-communicable
diseases.

The measure formed a nine-member Community Advisory Board, appointed by the Mayor, and
approved by City Council. The Board is responsible for:

1. Making recommendations to City Council on use of funding/programs that will reduce the
health consequences from consuming sugar-sweetened beverages (final allocations are
still determined by City Council).

2. Publishing an annual report regarding the implementation of the Board's
recommendations and the impact on the use of these funds.

Revenues - Measure HH revenues ended the year at $5.72 million which is $10.55 million or
64.8% under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $16.27 million. The Adjusted Budget includes
$9.09 million in use of fund balance to support the FY 2023-24 carryforwards. Net of use of fund

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 25

balance, the actual Sales Tax for Measure HH came in at $5.12 million which is $1.76 million or
25.6% under the $6.88 million Adjusted Budget estimate. Entering FY 2023-24, this revenue
source had sustained a decline at a rate of about 8% each year since its inception in FY 2017-

2018.

Table 15: FY 2023-24 Measure HH (SSBT) Fund Revenues ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24
Revenue Adjusted FY 2023-24 Q4 | Over/Under Over/ Under
Category Budaet YTD Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
g Budget Budget

Project Offsets
& Carryforwards 9.09 — (9.09 (100.0)%
Local Tax 6.88 5.12 (1.76 (25.6)%
Transfers from
Fund Balance 0.29 — (0.29 (100.0)%
Interest Income —] 0.51 0.51 — 9%
Miscellaneous
Revenue — 0.09 0.09 — Y
Total Revenue 16.27 5.72 (10.55 (64.8)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures are at $6.39 million, which is a savings of
$9.88 million, compared to the Adjusted Budget of $16.27 million. The savings are primarily due
to underspending in personnel costs.

Table 16: FY 2023-24 Measure HH (SSBT) Fund Expenditures ($ in millions)

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 26
Year-End $ | Year-End %

FY2023-24 | FY2023-24 | '/ ynder | Over/Under

Agency / Department Adjusted Q4 YTD Adjusted Adjusted

Budget Actuals Budget Budget

Capital Improvement

Projects 2.10 0.14 1.94 92.3 %

City Administrator 6.0 0.80 5.24 86.9 %

Economic and Workforce

Development Department 0.71 0.54 0.18 24.7 %

Finance Department 0.37 0.22 0.14 39.0 %

Human Services

Department 2.36 0.69 1.66 70.6 %

Non Departmental and

Port 0.50 — 0.50 100.0 %

Oakland Parks and

Recreation Department 4.09 3.97 0.08 2.0 %

Oakland Public Library

Department 0.11 0.02 0.09 84.3 %

Oakland Public Works

Department 0.03 — 0.03 100.0 %

Total 16.27 6.39 9.88 60.7 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $5.72 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $6.39 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in Measure HH (SSBT)
Fund (1030) decreased from $10.76 million to $10.09 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 17: FY 2023-24 Measure HH (SSBT) Fund Year-End Available Fund Balance ($ in

millions)

FY 2023-24 Q4 Year-
MEASURE HH SSBT (1030) End Actuals
Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ 10.76
Revenue 5.72
Expenditures 6.39
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) (0.67
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 10.09

Measures BB & F Funds (2215, 2217, 2218, 2219, 2220)

Measure BB and F Funds are administered by the Alameda County Transportation Commission
(Alameda CTC) which manages the following local fund sources:

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 27

1. Measure BB, passed by voters in November 2014, authorized collection of the initial
half-cent transportation sales tax by the Board of Equalization. Collection began on April
1, 2015 and extended through March 31, 2022 as a compliment to Measure B which
sunset in March 2022. The full one-cent sales tax authorized by Measure BB took effect
April 1, 2022 and will extend through March 31, 2045. Starting in July 2015, Alameda
CTC began making monthly direct local distribution payments to local jurisdictions and
transit agencies, per the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan, for the following
programs: local streets and roads (including county bridges), bicycle and pedestrian,
transit, and paratransit.

2. Measure F, approved by voters in November 2010, authorizes the collection of $10 per
year per vehicle registration fee to fund the Local Road Improvement & Repair Program
and other congestion relief, transportation technology, and pedestrian/bicyclist safety
programs in Alameda County.

Revenues - Measure BB and Measure F revenues ended the year at $38.21 million which is
$40.97 million or 51.7% under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $79.18 million. The Adjusted
Budget assumes $4.67 million in use of fund balance to balance the Adjusted Budget as
adopted, and $35.74 million in use of fund balance to support FY 2022-23 carry forwards. The
actual Sales Tax for Measure BB came in at $33.46 million which is $3.50 million or 9.5% under
the $36.96 million Adjusted budget estimate.

Table 18: FY 2023-24 Measure BB & F Fund Revenues ($ in millions)

FY 2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Revenue Category Adjusted Q4yTD | Over/Under | Over/Under
Budget Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Budget

Sales Tax 36.96 33.46 (3.50 (9.5)%
Project Offsets &
Carryforwards 35.74 — (35.74 (100.0)%
Transfers from Fund
Balance 4.67 — (4.67 (100.0)%
Grants & Subsidies 1.81 — (1.81 (100.0)%
Interest Income — 2.29 2.29 — 9%
Service Charges — 0.13 0.13 — %
Miscellaneous Revenue — 2.32 2.32 — 9%
Total Revenue 79.18 38.21 (40.97 (51.7)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures are at $34.88 million, which is a savings of
$44.30 million, compared to the Adjusted Budget of $79.18 million. The savings is primarily due

to underspending in personnel costs.

Table 19: FY 2023-24 Measure BB/F Funds Expenditures ($ in millions)

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024

FY 2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
Budget Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Budget
Capital Improvement
Projects 33.36 4.35 29.01 87.0 %
City Administrator 0.39 0.35 0.04 9.8 %
City Attorney 0.05 0.05 — (2.9)%
Department of
Transportation 36.66 25.65 11.01 30.0 %
Finance Department 0.01 — — 2.6 %
Human Resources
Management
Department 0.24 0.06 0.18 75.3 %
Human Services
Department 5.31 245 2.85 53.8 %
Information Technology
Department — — — — %
Mayor 0.23 0.23 — 0.4 %
Non Departmental and
Port 0.52 — 0.52 100.0 U
Oakland Public Works
Department 212 1.73 0.39 18.5 %
Police Department — — — — %
Total Expenditures 79.18 34.88 44.30 55.9 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Page 28

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $38.21 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $34.88 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in the Measure BB/F
Funds increased from $54.39 million to $57.71 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 20: FY 2023-24 Measure BB/F Funds Year-End Available Fund Balance ($ in

millions)

Measure B/BB and Measure F Funds (2211, 2212, 2213, 2215, 2216, 2217, FY 2023-24 Q4 Year-
2218, 2219, 2220) End Actuals
Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ 54.39
Revenue 38.21
Expenditures 34.88
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) 3.33
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 57.71

State Transportation Gas Tax Funds (2230, 2232)

The State of California imposes a per-gallon excise tax on gasoline and diesel fuel, sales taxes
on gasoline and diesel fuel, and registration taxes on motor vehicles with allocations dedicated

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 29

to transportation purposes. The local (city and county) portions of these allocations flow through
the Highway Users Tax Account (HUTA) into the Gasoline Tax Fund (2230) and the Road
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) (Fund 2232), which allocates much of the
revenue from the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.

Revenues - Year-end revenues came in at $23.19 million, which is $8.75 million or 27.4% under
the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $31.94 million. The Adjusted Budget assumes $5.74 million
in use of fund balance to balance the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget as adopted, and $6.45
million in use of fund balance to support FY 2022-23 carryforwards. The actual Gas Tax ended
the year at $18.62 million which is $0.99 million or 5.0% under the Adjusted Budget estimate.

Table 21: FY 2023-24 State Transportation Gas Tax Fund Revenues ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24
Revenue Adjusted FY 2023-24 Q4 | Over/Under Over/Under
Category Budaet YTD Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
9 Budget Budget

Gas Tax 19.60 18.62 (0.99 (5.0)%
Project Offsets
& Carryforwards 6.45 — (6.45 (100.0)%
Transfers from
Fund Balance 5.74 — (5.74 (100.0)%
Grants &
Subsidies 0.14 — (0.14 (100.0)%
Service
Charges 0.01 — (0.01 (100.0)%
Miscellaneous
Revenue — 4.04 4.03 246197.3
Interest Income — 0.53 0.53 — Y
Total Revenue 31.94 23.19 (8.75 (27.4)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards
Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures are at $22.91 million, which is a savings of

$9.03 million, when compared to the Adjusted Budget of $31.94 million. The savings is primarily
due to underspending in personnel costs.

Table 22: FY 2023-24 State Transportation Funds Gas Tax Expenditures ($ in millions)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 30
FY2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Actuals
Budget Budget
Capital Improvement
Projects 5.54 0.1 5.44 98.2 %
City Administrator 0.18 0.12 0.06 33.3 %
Department of
Transportation 25.86 22.60 3.24 12.6 %
Economic and
Workforce
Development
Department 0.01 0.01 — 20.0 %
Finance Department 0.09 0.01 0.09 91.7 %
Human Resources
Management
Department 0.24 0.04 0.18 75.3 %
Oakland Public Works
Department 0.02 0.01 — 22.9 %
Total Expenditures 31.94 22.91 9.03 28.3 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $23.19 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $22.91 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in the State
Transportation Gas Tax Funds increased from $11.56 million to $11.79 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 23: FY 2023-24 State Transportation Funds Year-End Available Fund Balance ($ in

millions)
State Transportation (Gas Tax) Funds (2230, 2232) i Zgﬁg'iiﬁglzear'
Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ 11.56
Revenue 23.19
Expenditures 22.91
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) 0.28
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 11.84

Measure Q - OPR Preservation, Litter Reduction, Homelessness Support Act Fund (2244)

Measure Q, the 2020 Oakland Parks and Recreation, Preservation, Litter Reduction, and
Homelessness Support Act Fund (2244), is a City of Oakland ballot initiative approved by voters
on March 3, 2020, that established an annual special parcel tax for 20 years. This measure,
which passed by more than a two-thirds majority, imposes a special parcel tax for the purpose
of raising revenue to provide services for parks, landscape maintenance, and recreational
services; to address homelessness and enable unsheltered and unhoused residents to access

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 31

temporary shelters, transitional, supportive, and permanent housing; and to address water
quality and litter reduction, including the maintenance and cleaning of stormwater trash
collection systems.

Revenues - Year-end revenues came in at $32.41 million, which is $15.19 million or 31.9%
under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $47.60 million. The Adjusted Budget assumes $2.53
million in use of fund balance to balance the Adjusted Budget as adopted, and $14.28 million to
support carryforward expenditures. The actual Measure Q Tax, net of use of fund balance, came
in at $31.18 million, which is $0.39 million or 1.3% over the Adjusted Budget estimate. This local
measure is collected through property tax bills and is a consistent revenue source.

Table 24: FY 2023-24 Preservation, Litter Reduction, Homelessness Support Act Fund
Revenues ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24
Revenue Adjusted FY 2023-24 Q4 | Over/Under Over/Under
Category Budaet YTD Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
9 Budget Budget
Local Tax 30.78 31.18 0.39 1.3 %
Project Offsets
& Carryforwards 14.28 — (14.28 (100.0)%
Transfers from
Fund Balance 2.53 — (2.53 (100.0)%
Interest Income —] 1.01 1.01 — Y
Miscellaneous
Revenue —] 0.22 0.22 — 9%
Total Revenue 47.60 32.41 (15.19 (31.9)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures are at $26.99 million, which is a savings of
$20.47 million, when compared to the Adjusted Budget of $47.46 million. The savings are
primarily due to underspending in personnel costs.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 32

Table 25: FY 2023-24 Measure Q - OPR Preservation, Litter Reduction, Homelessness
Support Act Fund Expenditures ($ in millions)

FY2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %

Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD O\Aedr_l Ut"’:ler O\Aedr_l Ut"’:ler
Budget Actuals Bl!lléZeet Blj.llé%eet

Capital Improvement
Projects 2.39 0.94 1.44 60.0 %
City Administrator 4.35 0.78 3.57 82.1 %
City Auditor 0.04 — 0.04 100.0 %4
Economic and
Workforce
Development
Department 0.11 — 0.11 100.0 %
Finance Department 0.11 — 0.10 95.4 %
Human Services
Department 10.89 6.73 4.14 38.2 %
Non Departmental and
Port 0.87 0.53 0.34 39.5 %
Oakland Parks and
Recreation Department 0.13 — 0.13 100.0 %
Oakland Public Works
Department 28.57 17.99 10.59 37.1 %
Total Expenditures 47.44 26.99 20.47, 43.1 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $32.41 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $26.99 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in Measure Q Fund
(2244) increased from $21.13 million in FY 2023-24 to $26.55 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 26: FY 2023-24 Measure Q Year-End Fund Balance ($ in millions)

MEASURE Q (2244) Y o year

Beginning Fund Balance - Audited 21.13
Revenue 32.41
Expenditures 26.99
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) 5.472
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 26.59

Vacant Property Tax Fund (2270)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024

Page 33

Measure W - Vacant Property Tax Fund (2270) is a City of Oakland ballot initiative approved by
voters on November 6, 2018, that established an annual special tax on vacant property for 20
years to raise revenue necessary to support and fund homelessness programs and services,
affordable housing, code enforcement, and clean-up of blighted properties and illegal dumping.
A property is considered vacant if it is not in-use for at least 50 days in a calendar year. "Use" is
defined as the performance of a function or operation. The per-parcel tax rates are $6,000 for
vacant properties or lots and $3,000 for vacant condominium, duplex, townhouse and
commercial ground floor commercial spaces. The tax is included in the secured property tax bill
administered by Alameda County.

Revenues - Year-end revenues came in at $6.37 million, which is $0.25 million or 4.1% over the
Adjusted Budget of $6.12 million, The Adjusted Budget assumes $0.19 million in use of fund
balance to balance the Adjusted Budget as adopted, and $0.58 million to support carryforward
expenditures. Net of use of fund balance, the actual Vacant Property Tax projects to come at
$6.29 million which is $0.94 million or 17.6% over budget.

Table 27: FY 2023-24 Vacant Property Tax Fund Revenues ($ in millions)

FY 2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Revenue Category Adjusted Q4 YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
Budget Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Budget ‘
Local Tax 5.35 6.29 0.94 17.6 %
Project Offsets &
Carryforwards 0.58 — (0.58 (100.0)%
Transfers from Fund
Balance 0.19 — (0.19 (100.0)%
Interest Income —] 0.06 0.06 — %
Miscellaneous
Revenue — 0.01 0.01 — %
Total Revenue 6.12 6.37 0.2§ 4.1 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures are at $4.86 million, which is savings of
$1.26 million, when compared to the Adjusted Budget of $6.12 million.

Table 28: FY 2023-24 Vacant Property Tax Fund Expenditures ($ in millions)

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 34
FY 2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
Budget Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Budget
City Administrator 0.23 0.14 0.09 38.6 %
Finance Department 0.81 0.64 0.17 211 %Y
Human Services
Department 0.17 — 0.17 100.0 %
Oakland Public Works
Department 4.90 4.08 0.82 16.8 %
Total Expenditures 6.12 4.86 1.26 20.5 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $6.37 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $4.86 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in the Vacant Property
Tax Fund (2270) increased from $1.01 million to $2.51 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 29: FY 2023-24 Vacant Property Tax Fund Year-End Available Fund Balance ($ in

millions)

Vacant Property Tax Fund (2270) i zgﬁgﬁtﬁ;:ear'
Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ 1.01
Revenue 6.37
Expenditures 4.86
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) 1.50
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 2.51

Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) Fund (2310)

The Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) Fund (2310) revenue is generated
through a direct benefit assessment, or special assessment and is restricted by statue to be
used for street lighting, landscaping, and public parks and recreation facility maintenance, and
multi-use fields.

Revenues - The FY 2023-24 year-end revenues came in at $19.43 million, which is $0.19 million
under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $19.62 million. The Local tax came in at $19.32 million
which is $0.24 million over the $19.08 million estimated in the Adjusted Budget. The Adjusted
Budget also assumed FY 2023-23 carryforwards in the amount of $0.26 million that will be
supported with use of fund balance.

Table 30: FY 2023-24 Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) Fund
Revenue ($ in millions)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 35
Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24
Revenue Adjusted FY 2023-24 Q4 | Over/Under | Over/Under
Category YTD Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget
Budget Budget
Local Tax 19.08 19.32 0.24 1.3 U
Project Offsets
& Carryforwards 0.26 — (0.26 (100.0)%
Service
Charges 0.21 — (0.21 (99.8)%
Licenses &
Permits 0.08 0.12 0.04 48.8 %
Interest Income — 0.01 0.01 — %
Grants &
Subsidies — — — — Y
Miscellaneous
Revenue — (0.01 (0.01 — %
Total Revenue 19.62 19.43 (0.19 (1.0)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures are at $20.02 million, which is an overage of
$0.40 million, when compared to the Adjusted Budget of $19.62 million.

Table 31: FY 2023-24 Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) Fund
Expenditures ($ in millions)

FY2023-24 | FY2023-24 | YearEnd$ | Year-End %
Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Actuals
Budget Budget
Department of
Transportation 2.60 2.53 0.07 2.7 %
Finance Department 0.03 0.01 0.03 74.6 %
Non-Departmental and
Port 2.94 2.75 0.20 6.7 %
Oakland Parks and
Recreation Department 5.00 5.00 — — %
Oakland Public Works
Department 9.04 9.74 (0.70 (7.7)%
Total Expenditures 19.62 20.02 (0.40 (2.0)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $19.32 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $20.02 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in the Landscaping and
Lighting Assessment District (2310) decreased to negative $0.70 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 32: FY 2023-24 Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) Fund

Balance ($ in millions)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 36
Landscaping & Lighting Assess. District Fund (LLAD) (2310) Y zgﬁg'iiﬁ;:ear'
Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ —]
Revenue 19.43
Expenditures 20.02
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) (0.59
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (0.59

False Alarm Reduction Program Fund (2411)

The False Alarm Reduction Program was implemented by OPD in November 2003 by
Ordinance No. 13015 C.M.S., and amended in 2010, to address the large number of false
alarms that OPD was responding to each year. The revenue generated by these fees is to offset
a portion of the expense that OPD incurs as a result of false alarm response. Fees also assist in
encouraging residents and businesses to properly use and maintain their alarm systems, thus
reducing false alarms.

Revenues - The FY 2023-24 year-end revenues in the False Alarm reduction Program Fund
came in at $0.79 million, which is $0.66 million under the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $1.44
million. The Adjusted Budget assumed $0.06 million in use of Fund Balance to support FY 2022-
23 carryforwards.

Table 33: FY 2023-24 False Alarm Reduction Program Fund Revenue ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24
Revenue Adjusted FY 2023-24 Q4 | Over/Under Over/ Under
Category Budaet YTD Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
9 Budget Budget

Service
Charges 1.27 0.82 (0.45 (35.7)%
Fines &
Penalties 0.11 — (0.11 (99.6)%
Project Offsets
& Carryforwards 0.06 — (0.06 (100.0)%
Miscellaneous
Revenue — (0.03 (0.03 — %
Total Revenue 1.44 0.79 (0.66 (45.6)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures came in at $1.03 million, which is a savings
of $0.42 million, compared to the Adjusted Budget of $1.44 million. The savings are primarily
due to underspending in personnel costs.

Table 34: FY 2023-24 False Alarm Reduction Program Fund Expenditures ($ in millions)

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 37
FY2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
Budget Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Budget
Information Technology
Department 0.11 0.13 (0.02 (18.3)%
Police Department 1.33 0.90 0.44 32.7 %
Total Expenditures 144 1.03 0.42 28.8 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $0.79 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $1.03 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in False Alarm
Reduction Program Fund (2411) decreased from negative $3.66 million to negative $3.91 million
in FY 2023-24.

Table 35: FY 2023-24 False Alarm Reduction Program Fund Balance ($ in millions)

False Alarm Reduction Fund (2411) FY zgﬁgﬁiﬁgg"a"

Beginning Fund Balance - Audited (3.66
Revenue 0.79
Expenditures 1.03
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) (0.24
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (3.91

Development Service Fund (2415)

The Development Service Fund (2415) was created on June 20, 2006 by Ordinance No. 12741
C.M.S. This fund collects revenues from licenses, fees, and permits from housing and
commercial planning and construction-related activities to support planning and zoning services,
construction inspections and permit approvals, building code enforcement, plan checks and
engineering services. This fund is required to keep a minimum 7.5% reserve of annual budgeted
revenues for its balance, which would be $5.48 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 36: Historical Revenue for Fund 2415

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 38

Fiscal Year Budgeted Revenue Projected Year End Revenue
FY 2023-24 73.02 66.94
FY 2022-23 52.24 65.32
FY 2021-22 63.98 73.94
FY 2020-21 47.33 50.25
FY 2019-20 61.5 60.7
FY 2018-19 49.92 63.20
FY 2017-18 45.14 90.13
FY 2016-17 38.03 77.15

Revenues - Year-end revenues came in at $66.94 million, which is $77.81 million or 50.3%
under the Adjusted Budget of $134.75 million. The FY 2023-24 $134.75 million Adjusted Budget
assumes $31.27 million in use of fund balance to balance the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget and
$30.46 million in use of fund balance to support FY 2022-23 carryforward expenditures.

Table 37: FY 2023-24 Development Service Fund Revenues ($ in millions)

FY 2023-24 Year-End $ Year-End %
- FY 2023-24 Q4| Over/Under | Over/Under
Revenue Category Adjusted YTD Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget
Budget Budget

Licenses & Permits 41.91 25.45 (16.46 (39.3)%
Transfers from Fund
Balance 31.27 — (31.27 (100.0)%
Project Offsets &
Carryforwards 30.46 — (30.46 (100.0)%
Service Charges 30.11 30.23 0.12 0.4 %
Fines & Penalties 0.62 2.53 1.91 306.0 %
Miscellaneous
Revenue 0.38 272 2.34 618.9 %
Interest Income — 548 5.48 — %
Grants & Subsidies — 0.53 0.53 — 9%
Total Revenue 134.75 66.94 (67.81 (50.3)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures came in at $84.02 million, which is a savings
of $50.73 million, compared to the adjusted budget of $134.75 million. The projected savings
are mainly attributed to vacancies.

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 39

Table 38: FY 2023-24 Development Service Fund Expenditures ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
Agency / P FY2023-24 | G er/Under | Over/Under
Adjusted Q4 YTD . .
Department Budaet Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
9 Budget Budget
Capital Improvement
Projects 0.06 1.38 (1.32 (2309.4)%
City Administrator 3.48 3.12 0.37 10.6%
City Attorney 3.59 3.75 (0.16 (4.6)%
City Auditor 0.05 0.05 — (9.3)%
City Council — 0.03 (0.03 — %
Department of
Transportation 20.03 9.71 10.33 51.6%
Economic and
Workforce
Development
Department 2.62 2.32 0.30 11.4%
Finance Department 1.81 1.31 0.50 27.5%
Fire Department 14.45 6.51 7.95 55.0%
Human Resources
Management
Department 2.03 1.46 0.57 28.3%
Information
Technology
Department 5.40 3.75 0.59 10.9%
Mayor 0.35 0.28 0.07 19.7%
Non Departmental
and Port 2.68 1.41 1.27 47.2%
Oakland Public
Works Department 3.22 1.66 1.56 48.3%
Planning and
Building Department 74.96 47.26 27.70 37.0%
Total Expenditures 134.75 84.02 50.73 37.6 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - The large fund balance has accumulated over the life of the fund due to

revenues exceeding the budget as well as longstanding underspending or delays in
expenditures attributed to a high number of vacancies within the Planning and Building

Department. This fund is required to keep a minimum 7.5% reserve of annual budgeted
revenues for its balance, which would be $5.48 million in FY 2023-24.

FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $66.94 million. Expenditures ended the year at $84.02
million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in the Development Service Fund
(2415) decreased from $122.38 million to $105.30 million in FY 2023-24.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 40

Table 39: FY 2023-24 Development Service Fund Year-End Available Fund Balance ($ in
millions)

Development Service Fund (2415) P PRI ek Ve A

Actuals
Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ 122.38
Revenue 66.94
Expenditures 84.02
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) (17.08
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 105.30

Transient Occupancy Tax (Measure C) Fund (2419)

The Transient Occupancy Tax (Hotel Tax) Fund (2419) is a City of Oakland initiative approved
by voters in July 2009 that imposed a 3% special transient occupancy tax on the privilege of
renting a hotel room in the City. The revenue generated by this special tax is allocated as
follows: 50% to the Oakland Convention and Visitor’s Bureau for its expenses and promotion of
tourism activities, and 12.5% each to the Oakland Zoo, the Oakland Museum of California, the
Chabot Space and Science Center and the City’s Cultural Arts Programs and Festivals.

Revenues - The FY 2023-24 year-end revenues came in at $5.26 million, which is $1.42 million
or 21.2% under the Adjusted Budget of $6.68 million. The Adjusted Budget assumes $0.55

million in use of fund balance to support FY 2022-23 carryforward expenditures.

40: FY 2023-24 Transient Occupancy Tax (Measure C) Fund Revenues ($ in millions)

Year-End $ Year-End %
FY 2023-24
Revenue Adjusted FY 2023-24 Q4 | Over/Under Over/Under
Category Budaet YTD Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
9 Budget Budget

Transient
Occupancy Tax 6.13 5.16 (0.97 (15.8)%
Project Offsets 0.55 — (0.55 (100.0)%
Interest Income —] 0.08 0.08 — %
Miscellaneous
Revenue — 0.02 0.02 — Y
Total Revenue 6.68 5.2¢ (1.42 (21.2)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 year-end expenditures came in at $6.01 million, which is a savings
of $0.67 million, compared to the Adjusted Budget of $6.68 million. The savings are primarily
due to underspending in personnel costs.

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 41

Table 41: FY 2023-24 Transient Occupancy Tax (Measure C) Fund Expenditures ($ in

millions)
FY2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD O‘A‘:’_L gt:c(’ier O‘;\?jr'{l ;Jt:cciier
Budget Actuals Bljzdget Bljzdget

Economic and

Workforce

Development

Department 1.31 0.75 0.57 43.0 %
Non-Departmental and

Port 5.37 5.26 0.11 2.0 %
Total Expenditures 6.68 6.01 0.67 10.0 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenues ended the year at $5.26 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $6.01 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in the Measure C Fund
(2419) decreased from $1.32 million to $0.57 million in FY 2023-24.

Table 42: FY 2023-24 Transient Occupancy Tax (Measure C) Fund Year-End Available
Fund Balance ($ in millions)

Measure C - Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) Surcharge Fund (2419) a zgﬁg'iiﬁglzear'

Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ 1.32
Revenue 5.29
Expenditures 6.01
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) (0.75
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 0.57

City Facilities Fund (4400)

The Facilities Fund (4400) is reported on a modified full accrual basis to reflect current assets
and liabilities. The Fund supports the Citywide function for building maintenance and janitorial
services of City-owned facilities. Revenues are generated by charges to internal user
departments.

Revenues - The FY 2023-24 year-end revenues came in at $50.71 million, which is $2.83 million
lower compared to the FY 2023-24 Adjusted Budget of $53.54 million. The Adjusted Budget
assumes $6.74 million in use of fund balance to balance carryforward expenditures. The actual
internal service fund revenues came in at $46.24 million which is at budget.

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024

Table 43: FY 2023-24 City Facilities Fund Revenues ($ in millions)

I Year-End $ Y °
Revenue | 'y292324 | Ey2023.24Q4 | Over/Under |)Goncrs /e oveél
Category juste YTD Actuals Adjusted el el
Budget J Budget
Budget
Internal Service
Funds 46.24 46.24 (0.01 — %
Project Offsets
& Carryforwards 6.74 — (6.74 (100.0)%
Service
Charges 0.55 0.77 0.21 38.8 %
Interest Income — 0.44 0.44 — %
Miscellaneous
Revenue — 3.27 3.27 — Y
Total Revenue 53.54 50.71 (2.83 (5.3)%

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Page 42

Expenditures - FY 2023-24 expenditures ended the year at $47.83 million, which is a savings of
$5.71 million, compared to the Adjusted Budget of $53.54 million. The savings are primarily due

to underspending in personnel costs.

Table 44: FY 2023-24 City Facilities Fund Expenditures ($ in millions)

FY2023-24 | FY2023-24 | Year-End$ | Year-End %
Agency / Department | Adjusted Q4 YTD Over/Under | Over/Under
Budget Actuals Adjusted Adjusted
Budget Budget
Capital Improvement
Projects 2.24 0.38 1.84 82.8 %
City Administrator 0.41 0.36 0.04 10.9 %
Human Resources
Management
Department 0.07 — 0.02 100.0 %
Human Services
Department 0.88 0.59 0.29 32.8 9%
Non Departmental and
Port 0.25 0.2§ — — U
Oakland Parks and
Recreation Department 0.20 0.71 (0.51 (261.0) %
Oakland Public Works
Department 49.23 45.40 3.83 7.8 %
Police Department 0.31 0.13 0.18 57.7 %
Total 53.54 47.83 5.71 10.7 %

*The adjusted budget includes Council Budget Amendments and Carryforwards

Fund Balance - FY 2023-24 revenue ended the year at $50.71 million. Expenditures ended the
year at $47.83 million. As a result, the estimated available fund balance in the City Facilities
Fund (4400) increased from $1.02 million to $3.89 million in FY 2023-24.

Finance and Management Committee

October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 43

Table 45: FY 2023-24 Facilities Fund Year-End Available Fund Balance ($ in millions)

City Facilities Fund (4400) a 2g§g-izt3:|:ear-

Beginning Fund Balance - Audited $ 1.02
Revenue 50.71
Expenditures 47.83
Estimated Current Year Surplus/(Shortfall) 2.88
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 3.89

ALL OTHER FUNDS - FUND BALANCE SUMMARY

Table 46: FY 2023-24 All Other Funds Year-End Available Fund Balances ($ in millions)

Net FY23-24

Audited FY23-24 Effect Year
Beginni Unaudit | FY23-24 on End
ng Fund | ed Unaudited | FY23-24 Fund Possible Estimat
Balance Revenue | Expenditur | Encumbranc | Balanc | Carryforwa | ed Fund

Fund Description | P01-24 s es es e rd Balance

1020 - Vital

Services (10.13

Stabilization 10.63 0.36 10.49 - ’ ) - 0.50

Fund

1030 - Measure

HH (SSBDT) 10.76 7.28 6.39 2.37 | (1.48) 7.58 0.29

1100 - Self

Insurance

Liability 29.69 61.92 62.90 -1 (0.98) (3.10) 31.81

1150 - Worker's

Compensation

InsulPance Claims - 1.76 1.76 0.56 | (0.56) - (0.56)

1200 - Pension

Override Tax 305.34 | 165.80 89.96 -| 75.84 -| 381.19

evenue

1610 - Successor

Redevelopment

Agency

Reimbursement (0.10) 1.18 1.21 0.02 | (0.05) - (0.15)

Fund

1700 - Mandatory

Refuse Program (2.29) 3.56 2.35 (0.00) 1.21 - (1.08)

1710 - Recycling

Program 4.15 6.09 5.43 0.25 0.41 0.84 3.63

1720 -

Comprehensive

Clean-up 0.94 25.44 28.35 0.36 | (3.27) 0.05 (2.72)

1750 -

Multipurpose

Reserve (6.08) 6.81 9.29 (0.93) | (1.55) 0.12 (7.75)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 44

1760 -
Telecommunicati
ons Reserve
1770 -
Telecommunicati
ons Land Use
1780 - Kid's First
Oakland
Children's Fund
1820 - OPRCA
Self Sustaining
Revolving Fund
1870 - Affordable
Housing Trust
Fund
1882 - Multi
Service
Center/Rent
1885 - 2011A-T
Subordinated
Housing
2102 -
Department of

| Agriculture
2103 - HUD-
£ SG/SHPIHOPW ©12)| 530 9.70 12.55 (16'95; 6.92| (37.06)
2108 - HUD-
CDBG (8.10) 14.48 11.20 0.07 3.20 1.99 (7.72)

(1.07) 0.98 1.15 0.01| (0.17) 006 | (1.31)

1.88 1.25 0.57 0.01 0.67 - 2.55

11.65 25.67 18.58 4.42 2.67 12.25 2.08

6.58 5.97 9.84 0.19| (4.05) 002| (1.79)

56.89 18.93 38.33 0.15

(19'55; 31.86 427

0.16 0.00 0.03 0.02| (0.04) 0.16 (0.04)

2414 0.11 0.38 - (0.27) 1.48 22.39

(0.46) 0.34 0.37 021 (0.23) 038 | (1.08)

2109 - HUD-Home 2.25 3.16 3.87 -| (0.72) 24.06 | (22.53)
2112 -
Department of
Justice
2113 -
Department of
Justice - COPS (1.01) 0.07 0.03 - 0.04 0.85 (1.82)
Hiring
2120 - Federal
Action Agency 0.08 0.16 0.39 0.00| (0.24) 0.43 (0.69)
2123 - US Dept of
Homeland
Security
2124 - Federal
Emergency
Management (0.60) 1.96 1.97 0.56 | (0.56) 20.15| (22.17)
| Agency (FEMA)
2125 -
Environmental
Protection 2.74 0.56 0.94 0.35| (0.72) 0.14 1.87
| Agency
2128 -
Department of
Health and 1.14 11.93 14.84 1.86 | (4.77) 21.25| (26.71)
Human Services

(2.42) 2,57 2.29 061| (0.33) 281 (5.72)

(0.31) 0.85 1.16 0.19 | (0.49) 066 | (2.54)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 45

2138 - California
Department of
Education

2139 - California
Department of
Conservation
2144 - California
Housing and
Community 0.42 7.59 6.23 0.08 1.28 131.07
Development
2152 - California
Board of
Corrections

1.39 9.34 6.80 0.16 2.37 (1.40) 5.16

(4.80) 2.02 1.62 0.01 0.39 758 | (12.26)

(129.37
)

(4.10) 15.61 5.76 1.08 8.78 10.10 (7.81)

2159 - State of 21.72
California Other 5.70 53.57 48.16 2713 (
2160 - County of
Alameda: Grants 1.09 0.26 0.67 0.41| (0.81) 0.80 (1.05)
2162 - Metro
Transportation
Com: TDA
2163 - Metro
Transportation
Com: Program (0.20) (0.00) (0.03) (0.09) 0.12 0.12 (0.20)
Grant

2164 -
Congestion
Mitigation & Air (0.09) (0.00) -
Quality (CMAQ)
2172 - Alameda
County: Vehicle
Abatement (0.33) 0.20 0.08 0.06 0.06 (0.10) (0.17)
Authority
2190 - Private
Grants 0.09 0.04 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.13 (0.31)
2195 - Workforce
Investment Act 1.01 4.34 4.20 0.06 0.09 3.59 (2.49)
2215 - Measure F
- Vehicle
Registration Fee
2218 - Measure
BB - Local
Streets and 41.87 29.96 27.96 1.30 0.70 26.70 3.94
Roads

2219 - Measure
BB - Bike and
Pedestrian
2220 - Measure
BB - Paratransit 3.83 3.31 2.45 0.45 0.41 2.57 0.97
2230 - State Gas
Tax 3.97 11.80 13.41 0.58 | (2.18) 1.72 (0.48)
2232 - Gas Tax
RMRA 7.60 11.39 9.50 0.40 1.48 1.91 5.84

2241 - Measure
Q-Library 10.20 19.50 20.93 0.70 | (2.12) 0.63 5.19

97 87 (123.5(;

(0.06) 0.63 0.44 0.59 | (0.40) 0.19| (0.65)

(0.00) -1 (0.09)

3.26 1.86 1.77 044 | (0.34) 1.57 0.92

5.43 3.07 2.70 052 | (0.15) 3.68 0.82

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 46

Services
Retention &
Enhancement
2243 - Measure D
- Parcel Tax to
Maintain, Protect
& Improve
Library Services
2244 - Measure Q
- Parks &
Recreation
Preservation,
Litter Reduction, 21.13 32.41 26.99 746 | (2.04) 10.32 (6.29)
and
Homelessness
Support Act

2250 - Measure N:
Fund 0.86 2.08 2.05 0.03 | (0.00) 0.01 0.56
2252 - Measure Z
- Violence
Prevention and
Public Safety Act
of 2014

2253 - Oakland
Zoo Fund - 0.23 0.00 - 0.23 - 0.23
2261 - Measure
AA - Oversight 2.60 4.32 0.52 0.02 3.78 - 6.38
2262 - Measure
AA - Early
Education

2263 - Measure
AA - Oakland
Promise

2270 - Vacant
Eroperty Tax Act 1.01 6.37 4.86 070| 080 0.05 152
2310 - Lighting
and Landscape
Assessment (0.00) 19.43 20.02 0.22 | (0.81) 0.09 (0.90)
District

2330 - Werner
Court Vegetation
Mgmt District
2331 - Wood
Street
Community 0.54 0.12 0.09 - 0.03 0.09 0.49
Facilities District
2332 - Gateway
Industrial Park 0.94 0.88 0.45 0.15 0.27 1.35 (0.14)
2333 - Brooklyn
Basin Public
Services

2411 - False
Alarm Reduction
Program

10.21 15.91 15.78 0.76 | (0.63) 0.12 7.31

1345 | 31.94 36.28 159 | (5.93) 541| (9.47)

13.15 27.60 21.29 - 6.31 - 19.46

542 13.70 10.65 - 3.05 - 8.47

0.06 0.01 0.00 - 0.01 - 0.07

0.50 0.15 0.05 0.01 0.08 0.92 (0.33)

(3.66) 0.79 1.03 0.08 | (0.32) 036 | (3.90)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 47

2412 - Measure M
- Alameda
County:
Emergency
Dispatch Service
Supplemental
Assessment
2413 - Rent
Adjustment
Program Fund
2415 -
Development 12238 | 66.94 84.02 1433 | (3141
Service Fund )
2416 - Traffic
Safety Fund 0.09 0.65 0.78 0.01| (0.14) - (0.05)
2417 - Excess
Litter Fee Fund 1.45 1.03 0.55 0.33 0.15 0.01 1.56
2419 - Measure C:
Transient
Occupancy Tax 1.32 5.26 6.01 0.00| (0.75) 0.67 (0.10)
(TOT) Surcharge
2420 -
Transportation
Impact Fee

2421 - Capital
Improvements
Impact Fee Fund
2423 - Jobs
Housing Impact
Fee Fund

2424 - Affordable
Housing Impact
Fee Fund

2430 - Lead
Settlement 2022 4.89 0.26 - - 0.26 4.80 0.35
2826 - Mortgage
Revenue 2.06 1.39 0.32 0.01 1.06 243 0.69
2830 - Low and
Moderate Income
Housing Asset 25.24 3.99 1.92 0.03 2.05 29.46 (2.18)
Fund

2990 - Public
Works Grants (0.91) 0.27 0.32 -| (0.05) 0.01 (1.85)
2994 - Social
Services Grants 0.44 1.16 0.71 0.03 0.41 0.62 0.23
2996 - Parks and
Recreation
Grants 2001
2999 -
Miscellaneous
Grants

0.88 261 2.23 0.03 0.35 0.02 0.30

1.10 8.24 10.38 0.03| (2.17) 1.57 (4.38)

25.42 39.85

9.37 1.83 0.64 - 1.19 6.05 2.94

5.90 1.19 1.59 0.77| (1.16) 2.38 0.25

- 0.00 - - 0.00 - 0.00

(0.02) 0.24 0.04 - 0.20 0.06 0.12

9.76 2.49 1.83 6.23| (5.57) 508 | (1.15)

3100 - Sewer (16.46

Service Fund 100.10 81.17 69.99 27.65 39.08 24.82

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 48

3200 - Golf
Course (0.25) 0.93 1.39 0.01| (0.47) 2.59 (3.32)

4100 - Equipment 27.35 50.02 31.35 566 | 13.02 7.43 30.32
4200 - Radio /
Telecommunicati
ons

4210 - Telephone
Equipment and
Software

4300 -
Reproduction 0.61 1.41 1.06 0.17 0.18 - 0.75
4400 - City
Facilities 1.02 50.71 47.83 6.03 | (3.15) 1.71 (2.17)
4450 - City
Facilities Energy
Conservation (0.20) (0.01) - 0.00 | (0.01) - (0.22)
Projects

4500 - Central
Stores (0.12) 0.63 0.58 0.00 0.04 - 0.01
4550 -
Purchasing (0.04) 3.27 2.93 0.03 0.31 - 0.42
4600 -
Information
Technology

5322 - Measure
DD: 2017C Clean
Water, Safe Parks
& Open Space
Trust for Oakland
5330 - Measure
KK:
Infrastructure
and Affordable
Housing

5331 - Measure
KK: Affordable
Housing (GOB 9.51 0.52 - 0.00 0.52 6.89 3.14
2017A-2 Taxable)
5332 - Measure

6.11 9.18 7.57 0.98 0.63 0.61 6.22

(0.23)| (0.03) 0.87 0.01| (0.90) - (0.96)

15.32 16.79 16.15 294 | (2.30) 10.14 2.48

11.51 0.57 1.55 0.78 | (1.76) 8.11 1.27

6.59 0.34 1.08 029 | (1.03) 3.30 2.26

KK:
Infrastructure (11.96
Series 2020B-1 19.96 0.97 6.81 6.12 ) 7.83 (0.02)

(Tax Exempt)
5333 - Measure
KK: Affordable
Housing Series 14.80 0.77 (0.83) - 1.60 15.10 1.30
2020B-2 (Taxable)
5335 - Measure

KK:

Infrastructure (82.21

Series 2022C-1 144.72 7.1 56.20 33.12 ) 65.10 [ (10.73)
(Tax Exempt)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 49

5337 - Measure
KK: Series 2023
GOB

53.88

16.82

10.15

26.90

25.21

1.70

5340 - Measure U:

Affordable
Housing and
Infrastructure
GOB

33.64

2.70

9.90

21.04

19.97

0.67

5341 - Measure U:

Affordable
Housing GOB
Series 2023A-2
(Taxable)

70.24

5.50

64.75

62.50

(0.36)

5505 - Municipal
Capital
Improvement:
Public Arts

3.30

0.47

0.13

0.34

1.69

1.87

5610 - Central
District Projects

23.65

1.23

4.46

0.12

(3.35)

6.08

12.61

5611 - Central
District: TA
Bonds Series
2003

12.83

0.13

0.10

0.03

2.20

10.66

5612 - Central
District: TA
Bonds Series
2005

6.06

0.14

(0.01)

0.08

0.08

247

3.67

5613 - Central
District: TA
Bonds Series
2009T

3.27

0.69

0.66

0.01

0.01

3.61

(0.32)

5614 - Central
District: TA
Bonds Series
2006T

11.50

4.54

2.09

0.66

1.80

5.69

7.60

5638 - BMSP: TA
Bond Series
2006C-T

0.44

0.02

0.01

0.01

0.17

0.27

5643 - Central
City East TA
Bonds Series
2006A-T
(Taxable)

19.37

0.44

0.35

0.02

0.07

6.47

12.62

5650 - Coliseum
Projects

5.04

0.26

0.33

0.47

(0.54)

277

1.72

5656 - Coliseum:
TA Bonds Series
2006B-T
(Taxable)

46.39

2.68

0.96

1.08

0.65

4.91

39.76

5671 - OBRA:
Leasing & Utility

54.71

245

1.27

0.01

4.08

51.71

5999 -
Miscellaneous
Capital Projects

3.01

1.88

0.28

(0.02)

1.62

12.43

(7.80)

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024




Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges

Date: October 10, 2024 Page 50

6013 - 2013 LED
Streetlight
Acquisition
Lease Financing

0.11

1.37

1.47

-1 (0.09)

0.00

0.01

6029 - Taxable
Pension
Obligation
Bonds: 2012
Series-PFRS

7.35

55.26

53.28

- 1.99

0.01

9.32

6032 - Taxable
Pension

Obligation:
Series 2001

0.33

0.02

- 0.02

0.35

6064 - GO
Refunding
Bonds, Series
2015A

3.00

4.09

5.50

-1 (1.41)

0.01

1.58

6322 - Measure
DD: 2017C Clean
Water, Safe Parks
& Open Space
Trust for Oakland

0.61

1.43

1.45

-| (0.02)

0.01

0.59

6330 - Measure
KK: 2017A-1 (TE)
Infrastructure
and Affordable
Housing

1.38

2.36

2.24

0.01

1.49

6331 - Measure
KK: 2017A-2
(Taxable)
Infrastructure
and Affordable
Housing

1.10

4.17

4.13

- 0.04

0.01

1.12

6332 - Measure
KK: 2020B-1 GOB

241

4.13

3.93

- 0.20

0.01

2.60

6333 - Measure
KK: 2020B-2 GOB

0.50

5.77

4.96

- 0.81

0.01

1.30

6334 - 2020 GOB
Refunding

3.07

2.09

5.86

-| (3.77)

0.01

(0.70)

6335 - Measure
KK:
Infrastructure
Series 2022C-1
GOB (Tax
Exempt)

20.96

13.04

10.45

- 2.59

0.01

23.55

6336 - Measure
KK:
Infrastructure
Series 2022C-2
GOB (Taxable)

(13.77)

0.00

- 0.00

(13.77)

6337 - Measure
KK:
Infrastructure
Series 2023D

5.85

0.98

- 4.87

(0.02)

4.90

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024




Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 51

GOB (Tax-
Exempt)

6340 - Measure U:
Infrastructure
Series 2023 A-1
GOB (Tax-
Exempt)

6341 - Measure U:
Affordable
Housing GOB
Series 2023A-2
(Taxable)

6540 - Skyline
Sewer District -
Redemption

6557 - Piedmont
Pines P1 2018
Reassessment 0.22 0.12 0.11 - 0.01 0.03 0.21
Refunding Bond
6587 - 2012
Refunding
Reassessment
Bonds-Debt
Service

6613 - JPFA
Lease Revenue
Refunding
Bonds, Series
2018

6999 -
Miscellaneous
Debt Service
7100 - Police and
Fire Retirement
System

7130 - Employee
Deferred
Compensation
7320 - Police and
Fire Retirement
System
Refinancing
Annuity Trust
7540 - Oakland
Public Library
Trust

7640 - Oakland
Public Museum
Trust

7760 - Grant
Clearing (5.74) (0.37) 5.20 1.61| (7.18) -1 (12.92)
7999 -
Miscellaneous
Trusts

- 4.10 0.61 - 3.49 0.01 3.48

- 15.08 1.32 13.75 0.01 13.75

0.04 0.00 - - 0.00 0.02 0.02

0.91 0.04 0.37 -| (0.33) 0.05 0.53

(0.01) 8.32 8.33 -| (0.01) 001| (0.02)

416.13 87.13 3.15 0.00 | 83.98 -| 496.00

0.00 0.00 0.01 001 (0.02) -1 (0.01)

37.03| (2.25) 4.59 -| (6.84) - 30.19

1.35 0.17 0.09 0.06 0.01 0.98 0.39

0.63 0.04 0.22 -| (0.18) 0.37 0.08

2.90 0.24 0.17 0.01 0.05 1.77 1.18

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



Jestin D. Johnson, City Administrator
Subject: FY 2023-24 Q4 R&E Report and FY 2024-25 Fiscal Condition and Challenges
Date: October 10, 2024 Page 52

Finance and Management Committee
October 22, 2024



From: Mike Forbes

To: Bassett, Nathan

Subject: Fwd: Update on Coliseum Sale and October Community Happenings
Date: Thursday, October 3, 2024 6:19:59 PM

Hello Nathan!

Can I forward this email to the BAC committee?

Thanks,

Mike

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Janani Ramachandran <jsavas.oaklandca.gov@zm7fb.e2ma.net>
Date: October 3, 2024 at 4:32:47 PM PDT

To: frbsmk@gmail.com

Subject: Update on Coliseum Sale and October Community Happenings
Reply-To: jsavas@oaklandca.gov

Alternate text

Dear Michael,

There are a number of things that give me hope in Oakland - our spirit of volunteerism, our beautiful arts culture, our
enterprising small businesses, and above all, our community resilience. This month - there are so many ways to celebrate
the positive - from Oaktoberfest in the Dimond, to our upcoming D4 Community Concert, “Oakland’s Finest: Hip Hop Meets
Gospel,” to Visit Oakland Style Week, and much more. I will always strive to uplift positive events to bring back vibrancy,

safety, and economic growth to the Town at a time when we need it the most.

But I am also deeply concerned about the state of the city’s budget, and the urgent need for transparency in how the City
conducts its business. Earlier this summer I expressed my frustration with Council’s irresponsible decision to use one-time
funds from the anticipated sale of the Coliseum to fund basic city services before the deal was finalized. In that budget,
Council included a provision for a “contingency budget” with drastic cuts to public safety — such as the temporary closure of
fire stations, reduction in the number of budgeted officers to 600, freezing of violence prevention contracts, and more (more
details in the city's budget presentation). The clear, unequivocal language of this budget resolution was that this
contingency budget would go into effect by October 1st if the City did not receive $15 million of nonrefundable payments
towards the $105 million Coliseum sale price by September (read more in the resolution).

October 1st has now come and gone. We did not receive the entirety of the $15 million and we have no clear answers as to
the future of the Coliseum sale nor the impact on our budget. Despite repeated questions from Councilmembers Reid, Gallo,
and myself over the past few weeks to the City Administration and Mayor about the timeline for receiving the rest of the
payments and the status of the contingency plan - especially the impacts to public safety — we have received no
straightforward responses. While I have learned solely from media reports about a “newly restructured” deal - the fact is
that anything materially changing the terms that Council approved earlier this summer must in fact return to Council for
approval before being finalized — something that has clearly not yet happened.

There is no doubt that large-scale land deals are complicated and take time to work out details. I voted for, and continue to
support, the sale of the Coliseum to the African American Sports and Entertainment Group. But I did not vote for a budget


mailto:frbsmk@gmail.com
mailto:NBassett@oaklandca.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7896pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978125956%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=LJ9660XqxY961d%2FS81vk0FF9OpDIBNVXEXK0Zw4%2F99c%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fn1a7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978149754%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fTtFc6JX%2FxmKUFIls7oG13fOO3GcvOckZMz6KcIcuio%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3tb7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978169887%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vC3dekCowie%2BovcQU0hLs0YPh8d3RyqrtvyRFsUKkPc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3tb7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978169887%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vC3dekCowie%2BovcQU0hLs0YPh8d3RyqrtvyRFsUKkPc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjmc7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978191755%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5qDHsC5aXKjxntZdpoyZORkgPQrc6EQvUGWiY2N9VJg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzed7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978215662%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1XU5zW8m5whAhzJFWo4hPNVsQffBY42%2B1%2FURdMnStFM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ff7d7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978236144%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4qybyrMzSZC7kcpgBv14mFJMq%2FsSXNfm%2BZWbvmtFwFU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvze7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978255726%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0O817YuAQgfaAcXJkI%2BOHyHcqaUIpAA3rK5pvvzBWFY%3D&reserved=0

that used this sale to plug holes in our deficit — and we are now facing the consequences of this rushed decision supported
by a majority of the Oakland City Council. My utmost concern is that the uncertainty and lack of transparency around
receipt of funds from the Coliseum sale is now impacting our already fragile budget - especially our funding for public
safety. I will continue to be an advocate for transparency, and have co-authored an emergency request with
Councilmembers Reid and Gallo for an informational report to be heard on Monday, October 7th at 9:30 AM. I will share as
much information as I can as I hear it, you can follow along with our video updates here.

OAKLAND'S FINEST - FREE D4 COMMUNITY CONCERT CELEBRATING LOCAL MUSIC

ON OCT. 11
On Friday, October 11th, I am proud to host Oakland’'s Finest: Hip Hop Meets Gospel - a free, family-friendly

community concert at the former Holy Names University Campus Auditorium that celebrates the diverse talents of Oakland’s
arts culture. The event will showcase some of the most renowned musicians who contribute greatly to the cultural fabric of
Oakland, including performances by the acclaimed Oakland Interfaith Gospel Choir, local hip-hop stars MacArthur Maze, and
my band Wish U Were Us.

Sponsored by Kaiser Permanente, Northeastern University, and Support Oakland Artists, Oakland's Finest is open to
residents of all ages from Oakland and neighborhood communities. Doors are at 5:45 PM, with the show starting at 6:30
PM. Complimentary beverages will be provided and local food will be available for purchase. Parking is free and will be
offered on site. RSVP to attend the concert.

17TH ANNUAL OAKTOBERFEST IN THE DIMOND: OCT 5-6

Oaktoberfest is coming back to the Dimond! Celebrate in the streets on Saturday, October 5th from 11:00 AM to 7:00 PM
and Sunday, October 6th from 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM - there will be hundreds of local vendors, over 200 local craft brews,
and exciting music and dance performances. My band — Wish U Were Us - will be performing at the Kanna/2 Star
Stage at 1:00 PM on October 6th! We hope to see you there - click here to learn more.


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fbsf7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978271866%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Vy5arxB3nrZGA5giS3Kl7nWzhFCJduENdiudKRk3qI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Frkg7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978292687%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Pok%2FfVasbVWMnrAr7XMtBaoRXNI2Lm3DikO98HOXKcg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7ch7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978310472%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ELMbWLX1Gp%2FZXeKmbMYELixwgeymkem4PL2LgUTIyco%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fn5h7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978327201%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=2OSm7AnvhAQeL7BvfyDupm7Y1YSlKqUioU5KKK%2Bs9R0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3xi7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978342177%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=abvGHoySJh8s5y6OUf0ls750jEw2YUs%2BVJJ3jMVYB4A%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjqj7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978364715%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Fl7OmH1lYZeiJLc6xJipfg9tuzypzkDtMiwVKp2bw7A%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzik7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978383515%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bE7dWBH6w%2FIv7fxppMzdROfGXsqsl0AvXyX2bT%2BRlfo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ffbl7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978400293%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=temWkSvCfOLVkypZZsLl0rD%2F3pD%2FSoC1hqvanhKL3ew%3D&reserved=0

Oaktoberfest Oct5th and 6th in Dimond

The annual Oaktoberfest in Oakland's Dimond District draws residents from across the City

WILDFIRE SPECIAL TAX INFORMATIONAL TOWN HALL VIDEO

This past June, I sponsored a ballot measure to enact a dedicated special tax to support wildfire prevention efforts in our
most wildfire-prone neighborhoods. This measure - now officially named Measure MM - has now been placed on the
November 5th General Election Ballot.

In an effort to educate Oakland residents about Measure MM and provide information to those in the City's Wildfire Severity
Zone, I co-hosted a virtual Town Hall with fellow Councilmembers Dan Kalb, Treva Reid and Kevin Jenkins on September
23rd. The event featured presentations by Deputy City Administrator Joe DeVries, Fire Chief Damon Covington, and Kristin
Hathaway from Public Works. Over 100 attendees participated in the event, which you can watch in its entirely below.

While this tax will fund critical wildfire prevention measures that the City currently doesn’t have the budget for, the Oakland
Fire Department continues to be extremely proactive in obtaining state and federal funds to support these efforts. Oakland
was officially awarded a $1 Million grant to fund its “Shepherd Canyon to Grass Valley Evacuation Route” project by the
State Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal Fire). The grant will be used to fund ongoing vegetation management
and emergency planning work along key evacuation routes in the City’s high fire hazard severity zone.

OAKLAND VOTES 2024
"What's On Your Ballot?" A Video Series By Councilmember Ramachandran

With Oakland only one month away from Election Day on Tuesday, November 5th, we have created a video series that
breaks down some of the key races and ballot measures, and also shares information about voting processes. As ballots will
be mailed out on October 7th and early voting is about to begin, here are some upcoming events that will allow you to learn
more about this year's election. Check out some of our recent videos here, more will be added to our YouTube, Instagram,
and Facebook pages in the coming weeks:

DIA Candidates Forum & Ballot Measures Forum

The Dimond Improvement Association (DIA) will host a Candidates Forum on Monday, October 7th from 7:00pm - 9:00pm
at the Dimond Public Library at 3565 Fruitvale Avenue. The event will feature discussions between District 7 State Senate
candidates Jesse Arreguin and Jovanka Beckles, and District 5 Board of Supervisors candidates Nikki Fortunato Bas and
John Bauters. More information on the event can be found here.

DIA will also host a Ballot Measures Forum on Wednesday, October 23rd from 7:00pm - 9:00pm at the Dimond Public
Library. The event includes a nonpartisan presentation on state and Oakland measures for the upcoming November election.

More information on the forum here.
League of Women Voters Forums

The League of Women Voters (LWV) of Oakland is hosting a series of forums to provide voters with information on the 2024


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fv3l7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978418560%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=n7tnIXAoRSMmCUsmroMC9srDevVUCd%2FsrdsJM0QJjkw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fron7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978454469%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mJgd7hkwcjE5h5BUi%2FXZAndYrjlS8ndcLJtmkP6ICx4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7go7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978474054%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wq9mAuhBkOnx6gx4XGqEUg09PG28psrzSphEWNWfsoo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fn9o7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978488509%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NxychZTaVI0%2BQN9AXSthqDrjTXekJCMW%2BW4p34fk7rE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F31p7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978501709%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2BjNLCokYrmIgBTh2z%2FK2WXLOuydqvkk6aRiqm5ubObE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjuq7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978515720%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XNwQhF7lB41jrBflNCbyLL2xFnEehhApwKrw460YIoo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzmr7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978530682%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=dGiT04LLusyi4ULCV1oV3JbEvY38P78yC4Yf5fYYz8s%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fffs7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978550683%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=EPYmegvHpbajLbwnGFZgBSfW6NeiZyo3hV1h1BmXhXw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fv7s7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978568515%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wJ8fuHTVLhvAo%2BSgrlO7ZaJLHxOndKnYXYPmQIsSXm8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fb0t7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978590765%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9TKU%2Bc6LnPpuLYZmba2J0nZQ58RcMKt948%2F2oR1NGGs%3D&reserved=0

general election.
In-Person Candidate Forum
Saturday, October 5th, 10:00am - 2:30pm - 1 Frank Ogawa Plaza

e 10:00 AM: Oakland City Council - District 5
e 11:00 AM: Oakland City Council - At Large
e 12:30 PM: Peralta District Trustee - Area 2
e 1:15 PM: OUSD School Board - District 7

Ballot Measures Pros & Cons Presentation
Saturday, October 5th, 2:00pm - 1 Frank Ogawa Plaza

o Nonpartisan and Informational
o Discussion of 10 State Propositions
» Discussion of 3 Oakland Measures

Councilmember Ramachandran discusses what Oakland residents will be voting on this November's General Election

ANTI-DISPLACEMENT LISTENING SESSION

I'm proud to join Councilmembers Kevin Jenkins and Treva Reid in cosponsoring one of the Oakland Housing & Community
Development department's three Anti-Displacement Listening Sessions this month. These sessions are aimed at helping
Oaklanders remain in their homes and will help shape the City's Anti-Displacement Strategic Plan. All sessions will be held
virtually; click here to register.

« Wednesday, October 16th, 5:30pm - 7:00pm
e Thursday, October 17th, 5:30pm - 7:00pm
« Monday, October 21st, 5:30pm - 7:00pm

#LiftUpD4: Make Your Voice Heard at City Council Meetings
Council Committee meetings are held on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of the month.

Finance & Management Committee — October 8th at 9:30am

Public Works & Transportation Committee - October 8th at 11:30am
Community & Economic Development Committee - October 8th at 1:30pm
Life Enrichment Committee - October 8th at 4:00pm

Public Safety Committee - October 8th at 6:00pm

How to Make Public Comment
There are two ways to make comment live during the meetings (you can also check out our one-page guide here)

1) Submit a speaker card in person at City Hall - approach the clerk for a speaker card and fill out before the item is heard.
For Committee Meetings, speaker cards are accepted until 10 minutes after the meeting has begun. For Council Meetings,
speaker cards are accepted until 90 minutes after the meeting has begun.

2) Submit an electronic speaker card to comment on Zoom - ONLINE SPEAKER CARDS MUST BE SUBMITTED 24 HOURS
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING:

Go to Legistar and find the meeting you would like to attend

Click the “e-comment” button to the far right

Complete the online registration to sign in to speak on a particular item

Your name will be called when it is time for comments to be heard on that item
Raise your hand on Zoom and unmute yourself to give your comments

If you need help signing up to make public comment, contact D4 Legislative Coordinator Rebecca Dean
rdean@oaklandca.gov for assistance.

Live comments are the most impactful way to make your voice heard with city leadership. However, if you can't attend a
given meeting, you can also send written comments to all Councilmembers at council@oaklandca.gov

Keep D4 Beautiful

Local neighborhood clean-ups and beautification efforts

Keep Dimond Clean Litter Walk
Every Wednesday at 8:30am, and Saturday at 9:00am


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Frsu7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978615459%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=A445qoC3WHX4I60X5uUyDHog7Ib9vXzzqru9hSEWQ74%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7kv7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978636303%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XBf97OeYCe%2BR7Fo74Zowlw6Q86MK0ZCzUBkGvOCaVvA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F35w7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978678697%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ePYD88XHTQowg92rT5N44gcIR1yeXMOdw0y%2BR8qA88Q%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjyx7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978700903%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=76%2Fs9Lh8mZMYTM6fq%2BnEgH%2B7rOMM%2BXspwGxthwNFFv0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzqy7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978727384%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9X54v57%2FGdRTyGotQOW9e4W4ST88Uu%2F8HP6sRg2kih4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:rdean@oaklandca.gov
mailto:council@oaklandca.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ffjz7pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978751331%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GAjfHFbSyoYfXo6wy4vAG6RZ3d18hbe3NQYi9jrKvXo%3D&reserved=0

Friends of Dimond Park Cleanup
Every 3rd Saturday, 9:00am - 11:00am

North Hills Community Association Garden Workdays
Every 2nd & 4th Saturday, 9:00am - 11:00am

High Street Coalition Cleanup
Every 2nd and 4th Saturday, 8:30am - 10:30am

Friends of Joaquin Miller Park Cleanup
Every Saturday, 9:00am - 12:00pm

Laurel Art Garden Cleanup
Every 3rd Saturday, 10:00am - 12:00pm - 3401 Delaware St.

Friends of Sausal Creek Workdays
Multiple days and times

Garber Park Stewards Volunteer Days
Every 1st and 3rd Saturday from 9:00am - 12:00pm, meet at Fireplace Plaza

Claremont Canyon Conservancy Stewardship Days
Every 4th Saturday from 10:00am - 12:00pm, meet at Signpost 29 by Ashby and Tunnel Road

Oakland Firesafe Council Monthly Meeting
Every third Wednesday at 7:00pm on Zoom

Keep D4 Engaged
Neighborhood Councils

Oakland’s Neighborhood Councils have regular meetings that are run by neighbors and attended by OPD Community
Resource Officers. Participants discuss public safety and other local issues.

+ Bret Harte-Joaquin Miller 22Y Neighborhood Council
« East Canyon 22x Neighborhood Council

Other Neighborhood Associations

Although not organized by the city, these groups serve similar functions. If you are part of any that you would like us to
share, please let us know!

+ Piedmont Pines Neighborhood Association
* North Hills Community Association
« Dimond Improvement Association

Feet on the Street Laurel Community Safety Walk

Join in a weekly walk of MacArthur between 35th and High Street every Tuesday at 6:00pm to create a shared sense of
community safety and support local businesses. Participants meet at the Laurel Ace Hardware parking lot. For more

information, email feetonthestreet@gmail.com.

Keep D4 Vibrant

Free or Low-Cost Events in District

Montclair Village Association Farmer's Market
Every Sundays, 9:00am - 1:00pm - LaSalle Avenue

LEGO Club
Friday, October 4th, 3:30pm - 5:00pm - Oakland Public Library Dimond Branch

Paws to Read
Saturday, October 5th, 11:00am - 12:00pm - Oakland Public Library Dimond Branch

Monthly Craft Time @ Dimond
Saturday, October 12th, 11:00am - 12:00pm - Oakland Public Library Dimond Branch

Tuesday Night Art Club: Papercut & Collage
Tuesday, October 15th, 6:00pm - 7:30pm - Oakland Public Library Montclair Branch


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvb07pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978773940%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lCy3lcZZm9pIpaTEXo%2FIuBwZufz%2B4DI3MtpqtcusC58%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fb407pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978799154%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Te5wcnqA2UTcsdUk1FiB%2B6TXPOMLuopYyd8DypaTxB0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Frw17pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978817765%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=og1FF%2BHKa7AWGpo4Zl5W03fLY1p7WDj5whHUo3mWRq4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7o27pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978836980%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NLQQUD3RGGRbBKa1D9EPXIbdgDfgxCft29Pu8JvskG0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fnh37pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978857167%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sjtaeFIeDX%2Bh%2Fh2Uk%2B9Xq6o06F3pxW48QDkVdZgxLts%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3937pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978881662%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0NAkGrSRKePObDOSyUWTDdY1mOTYtJfqaQcbmuCxGvI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fj247pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978903337%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2Fs3z4BZZxH8WL3fS9NUoeOICGiQ%2FVryk3EIVBJ0bL5Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzu57pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978923581%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=RGY9UnmBb%2F%2FS2jWDJVtPyAW%2Bi9LXkATEq%2B%2FyKDq6iaA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ffn67pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978944915%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=W0KJ86KGXVWHbM%2Ft2gOBu2WucAQj52HI9MnhKsWT9zA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvf77pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978964099%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0nPUxkkCUCUKrow5%2BQfPVcHGc2nvgZN2Cj076AUzpfY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fb877pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978979745%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=T3BE2W22CR0XupNL%2BjLYXfPpKPxQsQiGlHJWWILkfa8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fr087pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015978994269%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ej6JSq2%2Fuj5QGVzhHfd9tNhLrAWytBIDt%2F75fc0afDA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7s97pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979010497%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Vm7kEbi5uEFRd5k6M1agz9GOkFLpluefkCHSiDosFCg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fnla8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979033386%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=e%2BxrwOeo1J%2FHlP%2BWcIpex43mfqJkFYtsTooT6klUX0k%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3db8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979048668%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=c1Z235vUuvSQyYEsnSi7MIhRDQ34XHus7A5jRNxMC48%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fj6b8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979066461%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OCpqvzXM5rayYnuEDMxi9IIw9bCb28fkc2Hh%2BKjpd5U%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzyc8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979079506%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lAoRtvPbP9RmOmbleXwgKYP1TtGz6AJLNCoJwqa%2BiZY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ffrd8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979096219%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=K6a1uF3tTRniG2NMzO2CVnhPZBVhsJ67ckoIWYCZ%2F78%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvje8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979112132%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=X2RVKLDNmRAvVgr0VoEyEieiSCtuRp4xvJQxGDcTHEU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fbcf8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979129345%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3zQwh8biKD7bEVNBkNn7coYP0wWy4B027cEKsgD5SPY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fr4f8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979145546%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=n6I%2FuAbOSZllFwE2V0%2Ffqbqt5Ja1qGh8QAAel1egz78%3D&reserved=0
mailto:feetonthestreet@gmail.com
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7wg8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979162408%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=eBTGmVy%2BQ72VDOGvh65gOIqSPEuPlF%2F%2F2z7Uf4NTXLQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fnph8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979182133%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3zPJQ4sq4%2FQ96Sxs2%2Fvlhn2tO4Utj1gFBCbvno6T110%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3hi8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979203438%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qVX8BL9tB12sCXw1HmCzeSYU3yju%2F6qRO%2Bb9fCHHmVs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjaj8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979221603%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=L%2FAnj8hK3v6A4JHFbUAnukRWmz9VUbWMVJUc6u8AFrk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fz2j8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979240314%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=F2qqgxYba9b84cGVq5WjOKpAV%2BTiOsb4KiWg5PcMR38%3D&reserved=0

Dimond Book Club
Wednesday, October 16th, 6:30pm - 7:30pm - Oakland Public Library Dimond Branch

Paws to Read
Saturday, October 19th, 11:00am - 12:00pm - Oakland Public Library Dimond Branch

Live in the Laurel: Wasska Project
Saturday, October 19th, 5:00pm - 7:00pm - RBA Creative at 3718 MacArthur

Teen Craftin Montclair
Wednesday, October 23th, 2:00pm - 3:00pm - Oakland Public Library Montclair Branch

Halloween Crafts @ Montclair
Wednesday, October 23th, 2:00pm - 3:00pm - Oakland Public Library Montclair Branch

Teen Advisory Board @ Montclair
Wednesday, October 23th, 3:00pm - 4:00pm - Oakland Public Library Montclair Branch

Kids Clothing & Toy Swap
Saturday, October 26th, 1:00pm - 3:30pm - Oakland Public Library Dimond Branch

Montclair Village Halloween Fun & Trick-Or-Treating
Sunday, October 27th, 10:00am - 2:00pm - Antioch Court

Dia De Los Muertos Decorating @ Montclair
Wednesday, October 30th, 2:00pm - 3:00pm - Oakland Public Library Montclair Branch

Chabot Space & Science Center: Free Telescope Viewings
Every Friday & Saturday, 7:30pm - 10:30pm - 10000 Skyline Blvd

Dayan “Wild Goose” Qigong
Every day at 8:30am - Dimond Park

Sundays at Degrees Plato with D] Tok@Ritmo
Every Sunday, 3:00pm - 7:00pm - 4251 MacArthur Blvd.

Blues Band Sessions
Every Saturday, 6:00pm - 10:00pm - 3411 MacArthur Blvd.

Yoga in Dimond Park
Every Sunday, 11:00am - 12:00pm - Dimond Park (behind tennis courts)

Samba Funk Dance
Every Thursday, 6:00pm - 7:15pm - 3824 MacArthur Blvd

Trivia Night at Paulista
Every Monday, 6:00pm - 4239 Park Blvd

Live Band Open Mic at Lounge 3411
Every Saturday, 9:30pm - 3411 MacArthur Blvd

Keep Oakland, Oakland

kland First Fri - Health is Wealth
Friday, October 4th, 5:00pm - 9:00pm - Telegraph Ave between 22nd & 27th

Fall Farm Festival
Friday, October 4th, 4:30pm - 6:30pm - Mills Community Farm

Armenian Food Festival
Friday, October 4th, 5:30pm - 11:00pm - 650 Spruce Street
Saturday, October 5th, 12:00pm - 11:00pm - 650 Spruce Street

2024 EmpowerFest: A Girls Inc. of Alameda County Fundraiser
Sunday, October 6th, 4:00pm - 7:30pm - Oakland Museum of Science

Be Infinite Fundraiser for Trauma-Informed Cosmetology Program
Sunday, October 6th, 11:00am - 4:00pm - 1955 Broadway

Fitness on the Plaza
Wednesday, October 9th, 12:00pm - 1:00pm - Frank Ogawa Plaza

African American Museum & Library at Oakland Tour
Every Saturday in October, 12:00pm - 1:00pm - 659 14th Street

Oakland Civic Orchestra: Symphonic Masterworks
Sunday, October 13th, 3:00pm - 5:00pm - 148 Alice Street


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ffvk8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979254957%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WcFIxWnJYh2BtsnRxoK2etUVGBZIMST4vrWpIC5z8PY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvnl8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979269506%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OcaNaM3XD1LVeXPmwINuqV9ZldvXEenAXv3D5aFqZ%2FI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fbgm8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979289626%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2B3sRjluukIu9rkfkjmKka6uK28R9tc2RM3nIxIFNkW4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fnto8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979338686%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ZSUrpglWtajb%2B07js%2BB8BgJQsdiK8a6tE9UesUAYoYc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3lp8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979358931%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5oT%2BMn%2BJBFIIFvx1Wzur1c%2Fncs2Rfas47QDf7sh1AlU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ffzr8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979418763%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1vj4EEHzdX406kQ%2FY8go8r8ueYAQWArg9q0eYZA8%2Fzo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvrs8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979434312%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Uvj2Uxwy38POyuI7vssIC1eWIIuMVjjrfLf5JHqle%2FM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fbkt8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979451458%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2F0zRv%2ByIWBF4am1rI49%2FavFVgOm9ldnXVLJAiXD6Iq8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Frcu8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979469040%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cAS5e%2BmHMMelSpDQAzidXsVWDYpaQqiFW0r7ww5yfF8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F74u8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979487626%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8U3Jcr5Amza8upxP6AuI1VvkQi0Rg7kzMlSTBBjkCuo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fnxv8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979505591%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=v%2B8Xcf%2Fq2CRpuC7KT93tvjLCqAlvgc6BH2WzmjCliTU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3pw8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979524178%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QiaKEgFvCCGqDsb0ZMT%2BlkjSWkvHyKyafsIlH4TwVdg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjix8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979544024%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FXGSwZJcB8qUNk4SyjiV6tv3HBbqzrYHUpmkXl2TcVk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzay8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979557876%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TVtCdxfOYf8cjec1sC5mM%2BBTmviCn3f04d%2BOZ7psa%2Bc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ff3y8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979571089%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=UDfFY6ozFtTIHnyrZ0bjdhLg9eBjnxN9i1oYMDKRdx4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvvz8pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979582839%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PwE2csxOKxub1LmCbgYaAhn7hP5OkXHjkEKqtEIcXaw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fbo08pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979598280%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=jIGrROv6JAxODJrjwPeOlas63jCEJe9tEbM1Yan%2Byz4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Frg18pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979901873%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gI4hQqzdh50L4GHeEv3Hz2TVmXCfCiP3KzTXcRf43tg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7818pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979927316%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qkJTyD8t4Z20y5mz%2F1nsYCns7WiAFFd0X%2FCxrUVrCgE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fn128pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979949031%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=enAAte8TqD%2FQ9aMgosHJrSRPV4sFR1ULL%2Fp1baLd7ew%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3t38pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979967480%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NHoCOHTav%2FHat5w5xegAL84wH2aUkvA3TlaFLjRQJo4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjm48pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015979987316%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2BVxFBXFNGnDRTq4U6y%2FLySM3E%2B9%2BCHM8CEkHlxrdTyU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fze58pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980009125%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zS3LA3rattBOCpgDx%2FiqrMrhotoz0eBUF2MuavrMlRg%3D&reserved=0



https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ff758pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980031237%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ayik60kAJTtr1AVOBbSA0bypmiyyFPIip%2FrHwrf1sN4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fvz68pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980050218%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pPdElBJ%2BT6wu%2BxowHuknX88Q43yOu8YEkQwXX54GtT8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Frk88pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980085530%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3PYfnibk%2BXPoEpvM6kr%2B70b%2BDVBM50kVWWha3CAH4zE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7c98pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980110455%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gEhomKA10%2FR2f9mFQDtkW%2FiX8hV5cI1ScvQeRua6inM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fn598pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980130941%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=EY%2FuMggMiXSqZdG3WCsRJbemGyLSj3G6o%2FW5ghhaMyA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F3xa9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980150348%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hIXGylhub%2FS9RzcOdHojP510mnWGjx3t69EMDOMxMCY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjqb9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980170281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lk%2F2FlmRvjLow92M1p4U2gkBA3vrw18XSJ5vpeItZAY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fzic9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980187669%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SSyrHBTghlmYS4NZj84RJnBxOUEGPp91%2BFhYOa98lOY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Ffbd9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980204884%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0Wc%2FXeKSKXBsAMOMG7RP1l1RlzYe9fpz8HOW1Sv5GY0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fv3d9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980224326%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FfsWzjvqvN%2FnUE6aGkHr2Srba89f%2BckAP3mFJzJaEiI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fbwe9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980241000%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hsVOP7N50emuA0ff6Li180yIVYRFJhour9Cj3ol7qf0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Frof9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980269143%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bF2RejY4dQ15%2Fi1hbT%2BifmxXMMv48H5TTeg35gAiiZs%3D&reserved=0



https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F7gg9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980289666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xIxpXp7rGdsoX965sFIktDjJJjoVAQNXfp%2BKCa1fjIM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fn9g9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980310559%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GwmRdukt%2BNJC5Qn9VNNcYs23XFw4p7wZ7ocdVcPp8FY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2F31h9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980327546%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ZlevaDC51%2F6nJsSkJei1YXXvaMRk7LYGVM77Y30O7Ls%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%2Fjui9pi&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980345934%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=T9BANSbtXBldXPC5w6m5gZYZiy0IimWgavb4dbcX5UM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fapp.e2ma.net%2Fapp2%2Faudience%2Fsignup%2F1974154%2F1956121%2F335713561%2F108973393177%2F%3Fs%3DoQamH1q4wO8199xhdZ7sQrpDE-PfCe6ioj-mRPNQ1Y0&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980360328%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zkukQHfxhsM1IRl4Nw8cCUeVtr7qwrJEt4ledB72Q04%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Foptout%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob%3Fs%3DaSgamHW9ecCsWCuie8K7rys4Jun_omwaXu5k7CKgoek&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980374500%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5M494lmM7Vyee0t1XDuC1j0erLbG7qnPsSA5AJh%2FCGg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fapp.e2ma.net%2Fapp2%2Faudience%2Fsignup%2F1974154%2F1956121.335713561%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980391035%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TA%2FkNJP4QDtFJXv7gWDCHIi%2BbmubBcEdGPjIKINBbaw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fmessage%2Fzis5tf%2Fnla8hcob&data=05%7C02%7Cnbassett%40oaklandca.gov%7Cda0a224de0e24dea725c08dce412a5fd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638636015980410253%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HqhlTytd0LNANYKSckdNuMliUQfR66jtZ3ll2a6bGE8%3D&reserved=0

PRE-DECISIONAL | FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

Goal

Give City Council and Mayor actionable information to inform the FY 25-27 budget cycle.

Proposed questions

N.B. not wordsmithed yet; all questions should be field tested before finalization

New Questions

I.  How much do you rely on the following city departments to make Oakland a place you’re
happy to call home? Please rank on a scale of 1-10, 10 being 'very important'

Economic & Workforce Development

City Council

Fire

Homelessness Services

Housing & Community Development

Human Services

Library

Parks, Recreation, and Youth Development

Police

Public works

Transportation

Violence Prevention

rXe"IE@MMOO®>

II.  How effective do you feel the following city departments are in delivering services to you
and your neighbors? Please rank on a scale of 1-10, 10 being 'very effective'
A. Same list of departments

lll.  Oakland needs to close a $100M/year gap in its annual budget through a combination of
earning more revenue and spending less. For each of the following aspects of life in
Oakland, which option would you prefer? (Select 1 of 3 options for each topic area;
options should be the top ideas that would meaningfully affect budget)

A. For public safety...

1. X
2. X
3. X

B. For housing...
1. Defer affordable housing projects. ($130million savings)
2. Cut funding for legal counsel to help low-income tenants facing evictions.



PRE-DECISIONAL | FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

3. Cut loan program for first-time homebuyers.
C. For economic growth...
1. Cut or eliminate cultural funding (e.g., program grants)
2. Cut or eliminate workforce training programs
3. Cut or eliminate efforts to attract businesses to Oakland
D. For transportation...
1. Slow down street repaving and traffic light improvements
2. Slow down investments to increase accessibility and safety of sidewalks
3. Piece together smaller budget savings from across board such as leaving
current open positions and positions made open through staff attrition
unfilled (e.g for bus drivers, customer support, security, parking
enforcement) and ending the “$5 after 5 p.m.” downtown parking program
E. Foryouth...
1. Reduce maintenance frequency of parks and recreational facilities
2. Increase fees for youth programming such as camps
3. Piece together small budget savings from across board such as leaving
current open positions and positions made open through staff attrition
unfilled
F. For other community investments...
1. Defer improvements to Brookdale park ($1.4 million savings)
2. Defer the San Antonio park project.($2.5 million savings)
3. Defer improvements for the African American Museum and Library of
Oakland (AAMLO). ($2 million savings)
IV. A significant number of City Council members are new this year. What'’s your #1
message you want them to hear and act on?

Questions for Trend Analysis / Comparison with Past

V.  Generally speaking, how would you rate Oakland as a place to live: is it an excellent
place to live, a good place, only fair, or a poor place to live?

VI. Do you approve or disapprove of the overall job being done by Oakland City government
in providing services to the people who live here?

VII.  Demographic questions



	Mandela Bliss, Armand Bryan, Larisa Casillas, Mike Forbes, Guadalupe Garcia, Margaret Grimsley, Mike Petouhoff, Caitlin Prendiville, Jane Yang, Stephisha Ycoy-Walton
	City's Representative(s):

